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Whitehorse, Yukon Territory.
March 14. 1977.

Mr. Speaker: 1 now call this House to order.
We will proceed with morning prayers.

(Prayers)

Mr. Speaker: We will proceed to the Order Paper.
Are there any documents for tabling this morning?
The Honourable Member from Ogilvie?

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling this
morning a Resolution to the Yukon Territorial Govern-
ment from the Yukon Native Brotherhood, which
reads:

WHEREAS the Yukon Territorial Government, De-
partment of Education, is planning to introduce the
Northern Teachers’ Training Program into the Ter-
ritorial Assembly session;

AND WHEREAS it is of grave concern to the Indian
people of the Yukon that the program may not fully
benefit the Yukon Indians;

THE YUKON NATIVE BROTHERHOOD DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE that priority into entrance of the
program be given to persons of native ancestry in the
Yukon, and that the residence requirement be of a dura-
tion of five years or more.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further documents or
correspondence for tabling?

Are there any reports of Committees?

Petititons? Introduction of Bills?

Notices of Motion for the Production of Papers?
Notices of Motion or Resolution?

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South
Centre?

NOTICES OF MOTION

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, I would give Notice of
Motion that a draft of the Recreation Grants Regula-
tions be moved tg-the Standing Committee on Statutory
Instruments for study.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Mo-
tion or Resolution?

Are there any Statements by Ministers?

This brings us then to the oral Question Period.

QUESTION PERIOD

Mr.Speaker: Have you any questions this morning?
The Honourable Member from Ogilvie?

Question re: Native participation in Education System

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I have a written question
addressed to the Minister of Education. It's fairly
lengthy, but it does concern the general subject of na-
tive participation in the education system.

(1) Will the proposed Yukon Training Program be
under way by next school year? What are the objectives
of this program for the next school year?
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(2) Since there is an evaluation of the remedial tutor
program due this spring, what is the expected date of
completion of this evaluation? May we expect a copy of
the evaluation to be tabled or, if we are not in Session, to
be made public? Is this evaluation of the program a
joint report between the Yukon Native Brotherhood and
the Department of Education? Can the Territory expect
funding for this program next year and will that fund-
ing, if available, be under the Special Education Vote?
From whom will the funding come; who will administer
the funding?

(3) Is there a Native curriculum development prog-
ram to come in 1977-78 and by whom will this be funded
and administered? Does the Territorial Government
intend to integrate this curriculum deyelopinent work
and its recommendations into the Department of
Education’s general curriculum development in the
Territory.

(4) Are programs in Native education and Yukon
Teacher Training viewed by the Executive Committee
as related to each other and complementary to each
other? Are these programs viewed by the Executive
Committee as being essential steps in the integration of
people into our education system or are they viewed as
steps promoting a separate school system for Natives?
Is there an Executive Committee position detailing
progress towards including Native concerns in the Edu-
cation system within the next two years before a land
claims settlement, which includes elements concerned
with Native education is reached? May we have details
of that position? If the position is considered confiden-
tial because of the lands claims settlement process,
may we have assurance that progress is being made
towards integrating Native people into our Education
system?

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions?
The Honourable Member from Hootalinqua.

Question Re: Fish Survey On Teslin Lake

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Speaker, I have a question this
morning, but I see the Commissioner is not present and
it is a federal situation. However, if one of the Ministers
could get me the answer, I would ask what happened to
the survey that was made on Teslin Lake, again, I
should have asked. What happened to the survey that
wes made last summer on Teslin Lake regarding fish?

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
"Whitehorse North Centre?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: We would be happy to get the
results of such a survey for the Honourable Memter, if
indeed one has been conducted, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
Whitehorse Riverdale?

Question re: General Development Agreement

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I have a question
this morning that I would have also directed to the
Commissioner, but I would think that one of the Minis-
ters would certainly be able to answer it.

The question s, is it the intention of the government to



place before this House, the final draft of a General
Development Agreement between the Yukon Territor-
ial Government and the Federal Government, that per-
tains to economic planning and development in the
Yukon?

Are you intending to place before us that final draft
this session?

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Local
Government?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr, Speaker.
The Honourable Member from

Mr. Speaker:
Whitehorse West?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, on March the 2nd,
Mr. Hibberd asked the following question: ‘“Would the
Minister supply this Assembly with information regard-
ing the programs of the Detox Centre and Crossroads?
Is there an updated evaluation of their respective prog-
rams”’, and for the benefit of all Members as well, I've
prepared a statement with an updated statistical report
on the operations of the programs in those two areas,
which I would like circulated at this time.

Mr. Speaker, I would like to say, as this reportis being
circulated, that there are statistics in here referring to
people of native origin and people of non-native origin,
and when I earlier reported on this program to this
House last year, I was criticized later by people on the
native side, who felt that T had been gloating, I believe
was the word, over the fact that so many of their people
were making use of our alcoholic programs.

Mr. Speaker, it has never been my intention to gloat
over anyone's misfortunate or anyone’s problems, and
the reason I referred statistically to the number of na-
tive people in that program was, as I thought I had
pointed out at the time, that we were happy to be able to
serve those people when they needed help.

This year, Mr. Speaker, you will notice that the fig-
ures in this report are exactly the same for native and
non-native status clients in our treatment centres, and I
think that’s a pretty fair presentation of how this prob-
lem affects everybody in the Yukon, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions?
This brings us then to Orders of the Day.

ORDERS OF THE DAY

Mr. Speaker:
time?

May I have your pleasure at this

Mr, McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker, 1 would move Mr.
Speaker do now leave the Chair, the House resolve into
Committee of the Whole.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Hootalinqua, that Mr. Speaker do now
leave the Chair and the House resolve into Committee of
the Whole.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
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Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: Ishalldeclarethe Motionascarried..

{ Motion carried)
(Mr. Speaker leaves Chair)
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Mr. Chairman: I do now call the Committee into
order and declare a brief recess.

(Recess)

Mr. Chairman: I call the Committee to order.
We were in consideration of Vote 3, Establishment
322.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I have two informa-
tion papers here. One relating to the Yukon Teacher
Education Program and one relating to the Recreation
Development Ordinance. They’re entitled White Pap-
ers, but they are information papers as they pertain to
the budget. And I'm just wondering, with cor sent of the
House, if I could distribute this as information so that we
can carry on with Vote 3. The Clerk does have the
copies.

Mr. Chairman: Very well.
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, before we get into de-
tails of Vote 3, I wonder if I could make a suggestion that
sometime this week, we make arrangements to have
the Chairman of the NCPC appear before Committee
because I believe that the Electrical Public Utility
Board hearings will be beginning fairly soon and he may
not be available at that time, and I would like the con-
currence of Committee for this suggestion.

Mr. Chairman: A letter has been sent to the Chair-
man and we are awaiting an answer, Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, did we set a specific
date in the invitation?

Mr. Chairman: No, we left it empty for his consid-
eration.

While we might be considering some other articles,
we had requested that Mr. Bruck appear before Com-
mittee. It appears that Mr. Bruck is in Vancouver, and
the expense to Committee would be fairly considerable,
as well as the inconvenience to Mr. Bruck.

Does Committee still wish to continue to have him
appear before Committee?

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?
Mr. McCall: What expenses are you referring to?

Mr. Chairman: I think the expenseis in the range of



$400.00, $450.00.

Mr. McCall: Just to hear Mr. Bruck, Mr. Chair-
man?

Mr. Chairman: We pay a lot more to hear you, Mr.
McCall.
Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, it was my un-
derstanding that Mr. Bruck was to be in the Yukon in the
very near future, and that is why Committee invited
him to appear before us. That is not a correct under-
standing?

Mr. Chairman: Idon’t believe it is. I think the cor-
respondence we've had with him, would indicate that he
does not intend to be here.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: It was my understanding yes, he would
be in the Yukon. Maybe he has changed his plans.

Mr. Chairman: Okay, if he’s going to be here, let’s
have him. Do you want him if he’s not going to be here?
Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, 1 would just
suggest what the Honourable Minister did, that if Mr.
Bruck is going to be in Yukon that we have him here,
have him appear. If it's going to entail us spending 4 or
$500.00 just to bring him here for that special day, Idon’t
see any need for it. He can give us an answer in writing
on some of the questions we want, a very detailed one.

Mr. Chairman: Does Committee concur?
Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I just have to
say that I'm surprised. I'm sure that the Minister does
not pay Mr. Bruck’s plane passage and expenses to
Ottawa, when Mr. Bruck goes and has a meeting with
him, or the Standing Committee on Indian Affairs and
Northern Development, and it would seemn to me that if
Committee requested Mr. Bruck to appear before
Committee, that he would be only too happy to come to
the Yukon, where his money is made and appear before
this Standing Committee.

I am just going to say I find it just a little bit chintzy,
Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Are you sure he pays his expenses
when he appears in Ottawa, Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Well, Mr. Chairman, I would
certainly like to know. I think that’s a very interesting
point, whether the Canadian taxpayer pays Mr. Bruck’s
appearance before a Standing Committee on Indian Af-
fairs, or a meeting with the Minister of Indian Affairs
and Northern Development.

1 personally would object to some of my tax dollars
going out of my pocket so he could go to Ottawa to meet
him. I don’t think that we do pay for it.
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Mr. Chairman: I'm led to believe otherwise, Mr.
McKinnon, but we'll find out.
Mr. Lang.

Hon.Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this kind of conflicts
with what 1 was told here the other day. It was my
understanding that Mr. Bruck volunteered to appear
before Committee if the Committee chose to have him.
Some ...

Mr. Chairman: He volunteered when he was asked.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Well, Mr. Chairman, it was my un-
derstanding that, in view of the uncertainty in relation
to Cyprus Anvil, Mr. Bruck made that particular offer
to the Commissioner, that he was prepared to appear
before the Committee, and subsequently now I under-
stand from what you’ve said that it is going to conflict
with his busy schedule; is this correct? I have to agree
with my colleague, the Minister of Local Government,
that I think he should appear and should come up be-
cause this is where he does make his money.

Mr. Chairman: Wedidn’t say anything about a busy
schedule. We referred to the expense to the Committee.
Mr. McCall.

Mr.McCall: Ifinditveryironic, Mr.Chairman, that
when we are asked for anybody to appear before this
House that we have to start handing out expenses, et
cetera, et cetera. I think the Minister brought up a
rather valid point. We've been advised during the public
media last week that the gentleman in question makes
continuous ftrips to Ottawa and, if he’s being paid for
expenses for every trip he makes down to Ottawa, it’s
quite expensive on the taxpayer. I do not see if Mr.
Bruck wishes to appear before this House for explana-
tion or whatever, wishes to say anything to this House
that might be of value to the Yukoners; I feel that he
should be doing it under his own steam and not expect us
to give him a handout just to get up here.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to ask the
Commissioner what arrangements Mr. Bruck had
made with him. Apparently there seems to be quite a
misunderstanding.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, thereistotally a
misunderstanding. In a conversation with Mr. Bruck
regarding a question asked me in the House, he said that
if the House wanted him to appear he would appear. We
did not discuss who would pay and that seems to me to
be the misunderstanding — whether it’s a request of the
House to have Mr. Bruck appear as a witness or whether
Mr. Bruck is going to voluntarily come up to talk with
Council, either in the House or in caucus. I'm not sure
which is the situation.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: A supplementary, Mr. Chairman.
Who paid Mr. Kennedy’s way to the Yukon to appear



before the Committee as a consultant when we dealt
with the Insurance Bill? Is anyone from the government
able to answer the question?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I can’t answer
that unless you would like to call ...

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, as far as I know,
Kennedy paid his own way. I don’t think we paid any
expenditure in relation to Mr. Kennedy.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, ...

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: ... I would like that verified.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, have we, in fact, a
request from Mr. Bruck, Cyprus Anvil, that payment be
made to him for fare?

Mr. Chairman: No.

Mr. Lengerke: Okay, so how come we're assuming
this?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner expressed that
the matter has been left open, but we have to be pre-
pared to foot the bill.

Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: 1wasledtobelieve by the Minister last
week in his comments that he requested him to appear
before the House. Isn’t this correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, all I know is that
apparently Mr. Bruck expressed a willingness to ap-
pear before the House, if it was Committee’s desire.
That’s all I know about it.

I would suggest we go ahead with the invitation, to see
what happens.

Mr. Chairman: To be accurate, a Motion was put
before this House and passed, that he be requested to
appear before the House, so it is at the wish of the House
that he ifappearing here. That is what is on our books at
the present time.

Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, if a motion has been
put before this House, and it was passed by this House,
then we must extend an invitation to Mr. Bruck.

If Mr. Bruck sends us a bill for his transportation, we
must pay it because we cannot introduce a resolution
concerning the same matter in the same Session, so we
already have made our decision and I think that we
should stop being rather insulting, before we know
what’s happened.

Mr. Chairman: You're bending the rules; you're
bending the rules. It is not the same matter.
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Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: Let's continue with Establishment
302, 322.
Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, I'm at a loss now. What
decision did we come to right now?

Mr. Chairman: We'd better ask Mr. Bruck. The in-
vitation has gone out and we are awaiting a reply.
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I omitted to ask the
Minister of Education a question this morning in Ques-
tion Period, and it fits in beautifully here, so I'll ask it
now.

When is the Department of Education, or whoever is
doing it, planning to hold the air brake course in the
community of Beaver Creek? What are the dates that
it’s scheduled for?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I believe the dates
are outlined in the paper that was distributed this morn-
ing to all Members in relation to the air brake course.
Beaver Creek has been tentatively scheduled for the
week of March the 21st.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don’t seem to have
the paper that the Honourable Member is referring to.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this is a consolida-
tion of the background in relation to the air brakes
course. It’s my mistake that it hasn’t been distributed. I
have a copy here, and it outlines specifically the areas
that have been covered in relation to holding the air
brakes course, and where there will be future air brake
courses held.

Carcross is also scheduled for the week of March the
21st as well.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would ask the
Minister of Education, on the air brake course, if a
person has had some — well, in other words, actually
has possibly taken some course in this in the past maybe
10, 12 years ago, somewhere else other than in the Ter-
ritory here, and applied for the ticket now, would he get
it or would he have to take another course here?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, if it’s consent of
Committee, I would suggest that we call upon Mr. Gil-
lespie who is responsible for this particular Ordinance
and the Regulations, as a witness, if it’s the wish of the
Committee. He can probably explain it in much more
depth than I can.



&

Mr. Chairman: Does Committee concur?

Some Members: Agreed.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Minis-
ter of Education could get us copies of the information
that he was — of the paper that he was quoting from?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I cannot sce any
reason why we can't get copies.

Mr. Chairman: For the record, Mr. Gi]]espgé has
now joined us as witness.
Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd ask Mr. Gil-
lespie then in this case if somebody had taken an air
brake course somewhere else in the past, say ten, fif-
teen years ago, and applied for a ticket now or whatever
you give him in the air brake course, when he does pass,
would he qualify now for that ticket?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, if a person has an air
brake ticket that is valid in another province and he
comes to the Yukon, he will automatically be issued an
air brake ticket without a test in the Yukon.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, it is my understand-
ing that, even though he doesn’t have the air brake
ticket but he took the course somewhere and they didn’t
issue the ticket or something, that if the Union backs
thils{ and so forth and so on, that he will be issued it — a
ticket.

Mr. Gillespie: In that event, Mr. Chairman, he
would have to take the exam and if he passed the exam
he would be given the ticket. But he would not have to
take the course.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, of course, I must
say that I'm against the air brake course in the very
beginning anyway, because anytime the government
stuffs something at you and forces you to pay $45.00 to
take it, there’s something wrong with our government.

However, I'm quite sure I'm right in saying that they
have received tickets without writing exams and I'm
not going to mention any names, but I think you can find
them very well. There's one or two in the Yukon today
that have their tickets and I'm positive they did not take
the exam, I'll put it that way. They did have the training
some years ago in B.C., if it will help you any to find out
what it’s all about.

I'm just wondering what the air brake course is actu-
ally all about when I see that, and I think that many
truck drivers the same way wonder what it’s all about
when the government says you have to have this thing,
it’s nothing but a little questionnaire, but you canreally,
if you wish to, you can study it in the book and go and
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answer the question and I presume that you can get your
ticket this way, without taking the course. I'd like to
know if thisisright, too. CanI go and write the exam this
minute, or any time?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, if you are applying for
the first time, you don't have a ticket from elsewhere,
you're applying for this air brake ticket, you would have
not only to write the exam but you'd have to take a
driving. an operating test as well with the vehicle to
show that you are in fact capable of handling air brakes
and you may also have to take a physical.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, another comment.
For an example, and I’ll use myself because I think I'm
quite capable of driving and have been driving some-
thing with air brakes si'.ce 1940, and I am in the position
now where I wasn’t home to take the course when it was
there, and now I'm one of the individuals among many
and I presume now that it is my responsibility, although
the government says you must have it, it is now my
responsibility to come to Whitehorse here, probably
spend money in hotels and everything else, and the
$45.00 a day or whatever to take this course just soI can
get an air ticket.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, two things. First of
all, Mr. Fleming is, or anybody else is, in fact, compe-
tent to handle air brakes and feel that they can pass the
test, they donot have to take the course. Let’s make that
plain. You can just go right in and take the test.

The government is also considering, and this has yet
to be brought to the Executive Committee, kut it’s con-
sidering a regulation which will provide for temporary
certificates to be issued in situations such as that de-
seribed by Mr. Fleming so that the temporary certifi-
cates will enable him to continue to operate until such
time as a driver examiner is in Teslin and can give the
exam or the test to Mr. Fleming, so there’ll be no delay;
you would be able to operate his air brake vehicle in the
meantime.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I'm just wondering if I heard Mr. Gil-
lespie correctly. You are saying that an individual, that
even though he is experienced in operating an air brake
type system on a vehicle, does not have to take the
program or test in order to carry on operating that
vehicle, that he may own privately? Is this what you just
said?

Mr. Gillespie: Yes, we're saying we're considering
issuing temporary certificates for people who have,
over a period of time, operated air brake vehicles and
have not been required to have a certificate. For those
people that have not been reached by the driver ex-
aminer, we will be bble then to issue a temporary cer-
tificate until such time as the driver examiner is able to
come to his neighbourhood.



This is to avoid the prospect of some people who de-
rive their livelihood by operating air vehicles, to avoid
the prospect of them not being allowed to operate it until
such time as the driver examiner can reach their com-
munity.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr.MeCall: Youdid really answer my question, but
I'm still curious. You're saying it is not mandatory to
have an endorsement on your driver’s licence, and what
I mean by that, for example if an individual’s licence
was coming up for renewal right at this point in time,
you are saying that he could still operate his privately-
owned vehicle that has an air brake system on it, with
his renewal of licence without the endorsement of air
brake system being on that particuwar licence, like it
says in the regulations, which you already enacted prior
to the end of 1976.

Is this what you're saying?

Mr. Gillespie: The say the regulations read now,
Mr, Chairman, is, come April 1st, he will require an
endorsement on his licence, but we're saying we’re con-
templating either an endorsement or a temporary cer-
tificate after April 1st.

Now you will have to have ane or the other after April
1st.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: So either way you look at it, it's still a
mandatory thing, before that man can operate his pri-
vate vehicle with air brake system, that until he gets an
endorsement by the government, he would have to pack
it, is that what you're saying?

Mr. Gillespie: That’s correct, yes.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: There's another question arises, and I
don’t think that Mr. Gillespie mentioned that yet, which
came to my attention that there are a number of illiter-
ate people in the Territory who have been operating and
driving vehicles with air brake equipment for many,
many years.

What step is the government taking for them people to
achieve the test without having to take any written test?

Mr. Gillespie: I'm not sure what has been done in
the past, Mr. Chairman. I would imagine, though, that it
would be possible to have somebody helping the person
taking the exam to fill out the answers.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Gillespie: The written portion, although orally
the person taking the test would have to give the answer,
but I don’t know how this is handled.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?
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Mr. Berger: Well, I would suggest to the witness,
Mr. Chairman, that April the first is coming around
pretty fast and those people are still hanging up in the
air, and they do not know if they have a livelihood for
this summer.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, we've had drivers’
licences and other licences around in this Territory for a
good many years that require written tests. I'm sure we
would handle it in the same way.

Also, there’s notice of this requirement has been is-
sued since May, 1976 and so everybody — all the
operators at that point in time could make the necessary
arrangements to get their certification.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, not a question, just a
comment. I would suggest that I feel myself that the air
brake course, the whole system, was just another gim-
mick by the government to create another leg on the
octopus they already have in their administration.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I tend to agree with my colleague who
just got up and spoke on this. I strongly oppose this type
of regulation that you keep bringing in because I don’t
think you know what you really are creating here, and
you are creating a monster, because the say I see it it
looks like it is going to be mandatory right through the
Yukon, on and off the highway, and you're going to
create one more of a monster than you've realized by
trying to force this down peoples’ throats.

The first time I ever saw this was the end of 1976, you
suggested that notice was given in May -

Mr. Gillespie: To this House, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McCall: Maybe that is the case, but the short
period of time where you're asking people to scramble,
and some of these trucking people have been operating
trucks for many, many years, and they probably know
more about their own vehicle than you and I put to-
gether.

To try to put some of this bureaucratic nonsense down
their throat on top of a licence they have to operate the
vehicle with now, to me is a little ridiculous, and I think
we've got better things to do with our time than trying to
make people accommodate these types of regulations,
and I think this is not a well thought out set-up, and I
strongly oppose it, and if anything like this is going to
carry on, we might as well just hand everything over to
the bureaucratic system and we might as well go home.

Mr. Chairman: [presume your debates are directed
at the Assembly, and not at the witness, Mr. McCall.
Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in all fairness to the
government, these regulations were tabled last May in
the House, in relation to the amendments to the Motor
Vehicle Ordinance that was amended, I believe at the
same time, was it not, and it flows from the legislation,
and at the time, I would have thought Members would
have raised these pertinent points, and also at the same



time, I think in all fairness to the people conducting the
air brake courses, they have tried to publicize as much
as they possibly can.

There’s been ads in newspapers, on the air, they have
contacted community clubs and this kind of thing in the
outlying areas. They're prepared to put on this prog-
ram, you know, it’s available and at the same time it's
optional.

If a person is competent, the way 1 understand it, if a
person is competent in the area of air brakes, they don’t
have to take the program. They can write the examina-
tion. It’s not compulsory to take the air brakes course.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, on another line, is
it now the responsibility on the highway is strictly on the
truck driver? What regulations are coming forth to con-
trol the trucks?

It is my understanding that many trucks on the high-
way do not meet the requirements of safety where the
driver had to take a course of.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I've had alot of people
aspeak to me about this mandatory requirement for the
air brake certification, and it's my understanding that
some of the vehicles that have air brakes on them are
not as sophisticated as the course requirement for the
system that the testing is based on now, and I'm also
informed that the air brake system in newer trucks are
going to be much more sophisticated, and there are few,
very, very few of this type of truck in operation in the
Yukon Territory.

So that if we make this updating of this air brake
course to comply with other jurisdictions, we're getting
into a sophisticated type of equipment operation, that
very, very few people in the Yukon Territory will re-
quire, and I think this is what so many of the people are
very, very concerned about.

We started this, it's more than they really need now,
and because we're tied into other jurisdictions, we try to
get our licences compatible to theirs, we're going to
require a standard for people who operate anything that
has an air brake on it, a standard that gives you the
ability to operate something that’s very, very sophisti-
cated, and very few trucks in the Yukon will have them.

I think this is where a lot of people are concerned, and
Ithink that this is one area where we are going to have to
start digging in here, and make sure that we have a look
at that Motor Vehicle Ordinance, the enabling section,
and make sure that we look at the regulations under that
section.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I must
disagree with my Member from Kluane, when she says
that in the Yukon that we will not be operating, or we
will not have operating sophisticated equipment with
respect to trucks and air brake systems, because in fact
in Yukon we do have very high standards with respect to
the equipment that does operate, and I'm sure that the
transportation system, the transportation industry
which is a very important industry in the Yukon, will
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meet all those requirements and has been meeting those
requirements.

I would hope that any kind of course, any kind of
technical instruction that we offer, certainly does com-
ply with that new equipment, and as I say, I am quite
confident that the transportation system is, in fact,
operating complicated or up-to-date equipment now. I
can see no problem with that.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a question
for possibly the Minister, or whoever may answer it, but
after you do get your certification, what are your qual-
ifications, other than wheeling the truck down the road
like so? What other qualifications does he haveto have?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I'm not familiar with
the details of the qualifications that are required to get
the certificate for an air brake.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, this is just one of my
points, that you are paying all this money, I've been
going through this whole paraphernalia and coming up
with at, actually a certification to drive a truck which
you've had for many years. It is my understanding, and
if anybody here can correct me, I'd like them to do it
because I wish to find a little more out about the prog-
ram.

I doknow that you don’t go playing around with the air
brakes with a pair of pliers on a highway. There’s no
question about it. And this course doesn't really give you
qualifications to fix your air brakes on the highway or
anything else. In other words, I wouldn’t be surprised if
one of these days they’ll want them to have a certifica-
tion to put air in their tires because, you know, they just
— they're giving them certification to drive 2 truck
which they already have and it is actually no good to
them because they can’t use it, they can’t do anything
with it til they go to a mechanic.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think the Honourable
Member from Riverdale made a good point. Bus trans-
portation industry where they do use some of this or
they’re liable to get one of these very sophisticated type
of equipment and trucks, but that doesn’t mean that
everybody that has that class of licence is going to drive
that kind of equipment and this is the specific point that
we're trying to make that there are a lot of people in the
Yukon who have trucks of their own who are going to
have to have certification for this other in order to be
able to use their own equipment. And this is the area
where we have our concerns.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the Honourable
Member from Hootalinqua brought up the point, that’s
the reason that I raised the question before, about this
air brake endorsement on the driver’s licence, right
now the truck driver has to shut down the truck. He
cannot repair it. This is why I asked a question, what



regulations are going to be coming in effect or are al-
ready in effect to put the onus on the truck owners?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I would have to come
back with that information.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Another question, Mr. Chairman, on
the way that this course is conducted and the way that
the endorsement is made. My question is to the witness,
why does it take two people to go out on the highway on
two different dates to endorse one driver’s licence? One
person to conduct the course and a week later another
guy comes around carrying a little stamp and endorsing
¢ driver’s licence. My question is why does it take two
people to do this?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, my understanding is
that the one person is the instructor and the other person
is the person that conducts the test, and also that the
way that these courses have been run, the practice has
been, it may not have been universally throughout the
Yukon, but wherever possible, that the driver examiner
be there at the conclusion of the test, to conduct the test
right at that time and that the certificate is being issued
right there.

Mr. Berger: Mr. ChairmanP
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: It is my understanding that both the
instructor of the course and the person who endorses the
driver’s licence, had to take a special course in Van-
couver so they both have the same qualifications. My
question is why couldn’t the instructor endorse the
driver’s licence on the last day of the courseP

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the one person is an
instructor, under the Department of Education, and the
other is an employee of the Registrar General and Ter-
ritorial Secretary and has the powers under
Commissioner’s Order to issue licences. The person
who instructs the course does not have those powers.
And nor does he, on the converse, Mr. Chairman, the
person who issues the licence does not have training as
an instructor and for this reason we would not want him
to be the person doing the instructing.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: [ have to partially disagree with the
witness, because in order to endorse the driver’s li-
cence, the person has to write a test in fron of the person
endorsing the licence, so in other words, he must have
an understanding of what the course is all about.

Mr. Chairman: Before pursuing further debate, I'd
like to refer back to earlier debate before Committee.
The Chair has gained some information which might be
of interest to Committee. One, Mr. Kennedy’s expenses
were not paid by this Goverrment. Two, Mr. Bruck is
out of the country until April the 6th. Indian Affairs
always pays their witnesses and Mr. Bruck has not ap-
peared before that Committee in the last three or four
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years.

Mr. McCall: Which Committee is that, Mr. Chair-
man?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I was talking
about meetings with the Minister, was specifically what
I said.

Mrm Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Mr.Chairman, just to go back to the air
brakes once more. The Honourable Member from
Kluane asked the question when is the course going to be
held in Haines Junction? Well, I have an additional
question. How much the course will be? How much
money will the government charge to the people for
taking this course?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, unless the Minister of
Education knows the answer to that, we will have to
return with a reply.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s my understand-
ing that if you want to take the course, and you are
involved in private enterprise, and your company is not
prepared to foot the bill, like some of the major corpora-
tions do, you would p: in the area, I believe, of $45.00
for the three day program, three day course.

I think that there’s one point here that should maybe
be discussed. The witness alluded to the fact that there’s
a possibility that the time period for this regulation
coming into effect may be extended until June 1st, and a
temporary certificate given to people working in this
area, to give them time to possibly get to the examiner
and get the necessary credentials for their licence.

Now, I am just curious. Do Members feel that that is
long enough, June the 1st, if this were to come into
effect? 1 would like to hear some discussion on that
particular point, because at the present time, the way I
understand it, the regulations read that it will be man-
datory by April the 1st.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, well in answer to the
Minister’s suggestion, Mr. Chairman, I disagree with it
wholeheartedly. I don’t believe we should have these
regulations, because I can see certain operators, and I
am talking private enterprise, is going to use this as
much as possible, and what I mean by that is that — and
you're dealing with some of the most sophisticated
equipment in the Yukon, and I'm talking about the op-
eration which I'm involved with.

I know a certain type of attitude will use this to the full
advantage, and what will actually happen is that the
employees seeking a job from a'mine to amine, and I'm
talking like Clonton Creek to Faro, is going to be re-
stricted because the company will not hire him as an
operator of highway equipment because his licence has
not been endorsed for air brake system. We have three
systems on those sort of vehicles. This is what I am



concerned with - why I'm opposed to this sort of regula-
tion.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this particular air
brakes course has been put in twice, 1 believe, in Clinton
Creek, for the people working in this particular field, do
I would suggest to you that the people in that field have
had the opportunity of taking that course, and their
licence would be endorsed.

So subsequently they would have no problem trans-
ferring to another job site in the event that Clinton Creek
closes within the next year or so.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a question
for the Minister of Education.

Does the government pay for the air brake course for
their employees?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon.Mr Lang: Mr.Chairman,yestheydo.It’smy
understanding under the collective agreement that if
you change conditions of hire, the employer is responsi-
ble to see that the changes are made on behalf of the
employees.

It’s just like, for an example, if Cyprus Anvil, or White
Pass, I understand, have had various programs, air
brake courses put on, and White Pass has paid for them.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: A point, Mr. Chairman. I find the
same thing in so many of these programs that are more
or less stuck down the private enterprise’s throat. The
government pays for theirs, and of course, the larger
corporations that have the money, possibly can pay for
their drivers, very well and good, but I'm speaking of
the governments. They pay for theirs, and I might ask
the Minister and a few more people, just who the gov-
ernment is, and just where they get their money to pay
for the courses, and I would say they get it from us,
partially from the private enterprise.

The government puts in the program, and then they
ask private enterprise to pay their own way, and also
pay their share to pay for the government’s way, and
that’s another reason that I'm opposed to the program,

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, we're running
around in a circle here, but when you start bringing in
regulations like this, with all due respect, you are play-
ing a game of discrimination, because you're asking
private enterprise to foot the bill for their employees.
The government picks up the bill for their employees,
and what about the public sector? Who picks up the bill
for them?

And then you come back and you want funds to carry
on a type of program through vocational, or whatever
other schooling you have. I’'m opposed to this sort of
thing, because you’re opening the door and you're creat-
ing one great monster and this shouldn’t even — I mean,
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when you have vehicle licences, and then you come
along with this sort of regulation on top of that, and then
you turn around and hand the individual a bill, after
you've just rushed him through a program, saying
okay, your licence is now endorsed, and he has just
forked out X number of dollars, maybe lost a couple of
days’ pay, and he’s had to come into Whitehorse, or
wherever you're having the program, you force these
sort of regulations onto an individual, you know Joe
Lunch Bucket, if you want to call him that, the public
sector, you force these regulations,and t! 2n you know.
we're answerable for these sort of regulations. I am
answerable for them, and I'm definitely opposed i
something like this.

We already have licences, governed by law, people
driving vehicles, you don’t need this sort of monster.
when you're going to be coming back next year and
asking for funds for the vocational program, in order to
expand it, to cover up these sort of things on a continu-
ous basis. You're starting up something we don’t need.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, another question
is that the government employees got their way paid
and paid for the course on top of it. What does the gov-
ernment intend to do with the casual employees work-
ing for the government, summer by summer, and mosl
of them are on unemployment insurance right now.

Inorder to get employment with the government right
now, they need the endorsement on there, on their
driver’s licence. Is the government prepared to pay for
them people also?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that if
somebody is unemployed during the winter and this
program is available to him, they are a private citizen
like anybody else and they would subsequently have to
pay the $45.00 that’s involved. It’s just like myself. I'd
like to, possibly in another month or so, have the prog-
ram in Whitehorse, I'd like to take it, and 1 expect to pay
the $45.00; I don’t expect the government to pick it up for
me.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would suggest to
the government to extend the period, the deadline, from
the first of April to the first of May, because mos. of the
casual employees are going to be starting working for
the government April 5th. If they have another few days
to take the course on government time, then they get
paid, not only for the time but also for the course.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I — just a few mi-
nutes ago in debate, I mentioned the fact that the wit-
ness has notified the Members of the House here that the
government was looking at extending the period to June
1st and I asked a little earlier whether or not that would
be an appropriate amount of time in relation to getting
people qualified for this particular licence.



Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: When the Minister brought up earlier
in debate about deferring it for another month or so, I
would suggest, and hopefully the Minister would take it
into consideration, that he deferred it until next year.
Not this year. Let's stop playing around with a couple of
weeks, a couple of months. And I would like to give you
that opportunity — a full investigation of the matter
before you exercise this type of regulation. I would like
to see maybe April or May, June of next year, not this
year.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me an area
that hasn’t been covered. Has the government reasons
for having the course in the first place? They must have
had some information that made them feel it was com-
pulsory to have a course so that people who knew how to
operate brakes better, if they could expand on that a bit.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the reason is that
simply one of safety, both for the driver and for the
public. In most provinces, I understand now, there is a
requirement that drivers who operate air brake equip-
ped vehicles have to be certified to drive those vehicles
and this is the reason that we're doing it here. And we’ve
had, we've been approached by the R.C.M.P. among
others and had discussions with the Transportation In-
dustry about the desirability of this certification for the
safety of the public and the safety of the drivers.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard.

Ms. Millard: So the transportation industry sup-
ports this idea? And who is it in the transportation in-
dustry who has actually approached you?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, that was a year ago,
roughly, that we were discussing this and I don't recall
the answer to it at this time.

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think Mr. Gil-
lespie is avoiding the answer to the Honourable Member
from Ogilvie in that way, because it does concern me
because of the Joe Lunch Bucket types and the drivers
that do want to make a living out of professional driving,
they have to sometimes operate in other provinces and I
know that our sister provinces, our adjoining ter-
ritories, certainly jurisdictions, have this requirement,
as Mr. Gillespie has said.

What concerns me, I don't want to get into the argu-
ment at this point of, you know, if and when we should
delay it or not, but what concerns me is how do our
people get those qualifications, then? I know certainly
that some of the transportation companies have for a
number of years been offering this very course and have
been providing the facilities and the course itself and
the instructors. And the only thing that the drivers have
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to do is they have to forfeit two or three days’ pay, 1
think, as they're doing this, getting the qualifications.
But, how does somebody outside of a transportation
company or a facility, get the qualifications then if the
government doesn't provide some sort of course?

This is the question that I have. I want to know how,
how the Honourable Members want to accomplish this,
then?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: 1In answer to my colleague’s question,
not mandatory. There is nothing wrong with the prog-
ram we already have established. It’s been going on for
a year and a half on three types of braking systems, not
one, like is in the regulations.

My concern, on this particular regulation or regula-
tions, Ms. Millard asked the witness a question and he
couldn’t give here a correct answer as to who in the
transportation company or industry requested this type
of regulation be exercised. It must be for some end. And
my further question to Ms. Millard’s question would be
not only private industry does have vehicles air braking
systems, but other industry also, and who did you con-
vey with in the other industry, as well as private truck-
ing? I'm curious to know.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I will attempt to find
out with whom we consulted on this matter.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think, Lowever,
Mr. Lengerke made a comment he was wondering
about our drivers. I think our qualifications here are
pretty good now.

I know for one thing that, in the Province of Manitoba,
1 know somebody there who is driving, had no problem
whatsoever in getting his driver’s licence to drive a
truck for a large trucking firm, one of the largest in
Canada, so I don’t think really we had to have the air
brake ticket on there whatsoever.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would hate to con-
clude the discussion and make a decision on this today. I
think that the Honourable Member from Pelly has made
a good point, to defer it for a year, but [ would like the
opportunity to get all the information that the govern-
ment has, background information, so that we have an
opportunity to review it, and that when we come back in,
come back to this section, then we can make some final
decisions on it.

But surely the administration does have information
on which you based your regulations, and we'd certainly
like the benefit of that.

Mr. Chairman: [s Committee agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.
Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on this

Establishment?
Mrs. Watson?



Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, if we're looking at Es-
tablishment 322, the question is: is it this budget that
provides for the payment of the instructors that come to
the Yukon to give the university extension courses that
the Department of Education offers every year in the
City of Whitehorse?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, with the notes that I
have here, that's a correct statement, yes.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: What is that amount of money, and
how many courses are being offered, are you offering,
in this ...

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, the amount of
money is under Primary 20, under Short Courses, 30.7,
and I don’t have a breakdown course by course in rela-
tion to the costs of that program.

This also involves various other short courses in rela-
tion to studying, hydraulics and how they work and I
remember Finning Tractor as well, so I don’t have a
total breakdown in relation to the courses being offered.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, perhaps the
Treasury could assist us with the figures for recovery on
those courses, because it’s my understanding that the
students who take them pay a fee for that course, and I
always believed that it covered the costs of the instrue-
tor coming to give the lectures on the weekends.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in the particular
Vote 322, if you look two pages over you will see that we
recover in the area of $50,000.00 of $66,000.00 expended in
that area.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, my question wasn’t
what was the cost for each course. My question was,
how many university courses are you planning on offer-
ing in the year 1977-787

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'll have to bring
that information in.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, my reason for the
questioning was, when we brought in the kindergarten
program, many of the kindergarten instructors were
grandfathered in as teachers, and it was a commitment
made by the Territorial Government to try to assist
them to upgrade their academic qualifications to be-
come qualified teachers.
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My question is leading to, are some of these courses
useful to people who were, at one time, kindergarten
instructors, and who are working toward teacher qual-
ifications at the present time?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this is correct; the
Territorial Government did commit themselves to this
responsibility and it’s my understanding that a great
majority of these courses are — will be accredited to-
wards a final degree.

It’s my understanding that some of the kindergarten
instructors that originally, I believe, in 1968 when they
began the kindergarten program, some of them are
very close to getting their degree.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I'm wondering when
the Honourable Member brings in that information for
the Member from Kluane, that he also include in that
the university courses that were offered here last year
and just how many people have taken them, what the
success rate was?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Icanbring that information in, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, one more question. Is
the Department considering extending these courses to,
possibly, Watson Lake, Dawson City or Faro?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon.Mr.Lang: Mr.Chairman, notto my knowledge
at the present time. It would depend on the amount of
people who would want to take such a program, in rela-
tion to post-secondary study. It would depend on the
interest, as everybody involved does pay an entrance
fee. i

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, would the Department
undertake to survey these communities to see whether
it will be worthwhile, whether there would be people
interested and worthwhile to offer some of these
courses?

I think it’s a good program, but again because of the
population situation, Whitehorse is the only centre that
can benefit from it, and I would hope that you will have
the Department to undertake to do a survey to see
whether it’s possible to offer these courses in these other
communities.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'm not prepared to
make a commitment of this kind at the present time,
because I would like to review the situation, because a
lot of it depends on how many professors from the Uni-



vessity of Alberta are prepared to come up to the Yukon
to begin with.

Sowe would have fo look at that, and also in relation to
housing and this kind of thing, if these people are to go
into a community, so "1l bring back the information for
the Member, as to what it would entail if we did take the
programs 'o the outlying areas.

I do know *"at in relation to the night courses in the

I -ench progra.i, v e are offering one in one small
community in the Yukor There is interest there. and
th~=o is somebody capal » of texching the course.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the Minister, [ don't
think you realize that the instructoi .. ju.! “yme upanthe
weekend, most of the time, and Watson Lake woulu be
an ideal place, and possibly Faro and Dawson now with
the transportation, and I think it would be worthwhile to
conduct the survey.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr, Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'll have a look at it
and bring back information to the House.

My. Chairman: Is there are further debate on 3227

Three twenty-three, Apprenticeship Training,
$28.,600.00.

Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I just wonder how
many apprenticeship training programs we have. I'm
asking the categories that this affects.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

HMaon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I understand that we
have in the area of 80 or 90 individuals involved in vari-
ous apprenticeship programs, carpentry, welding and
all this kind of thing.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: That still isn’t my -- carpentry and this
kind of thing is not satisfactory. I'd like to know how
many occupational categories there are, that they are
involved in to this day, or at this time.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr.
Mr. Chairman,

: I'll have to bring that information in,

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. MecCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was just wonder-
ing while the Minister is allowing himself the opportun-
ity to request this information if he could request the
information concerning if there has been an increase in
the apprentices in the various occupational classifica-
tions in which you are running programs.

What type of increase in each particular trade, and
the apprentices increase in the government program,
or decrease? 1 wonder if he could bring this informa-
tion in as well?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?
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Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I don't quite under-
stand the question that was being asked. You want to
know the qualifications necessary for the various
trades, or could you please repeat the question?

Mr. McCall: I want to know, Mr. Chairman, just how
many apprentices there are in the various trades, going
through the apprenticeship training program that the
government has, and if there is an increase or decrease
in each job trade.

Thie is what T want to know, if you could bring
thi= information,

Hon. wir. Lang: Yes. I'll bring that in, Mr. Chair-
mon

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?
Mr: Lengerke: No, it’s okay. Thanks.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, this might be an
appropriate time to ask, in view of the receipt of a letter
from the Consumers’ Association recently, on the sub-
ject of tradesmen’s qualifications, and their under-
standing of the need for such qualifications in various
trades, if the Minister could just outline to us how they
determine what courses will be given.

I understand there is direction from a committee
which says what is required in the way of trades train-
ing for the Yukon. Does that lead then, to legislation
imposing trade qualifications, or is it thereverse? Does
the requirement for such qualifications lead to appren-
tice training?

Are we half-way through a policy which would tell us
whether we now require plumbers and carpenters and
so on to have such qualifications? Are we getting ap-
prentices in all those trades?

Perhaps the Minister would like to expand on that.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s my understand-
ing in relation tothe trades, there are definite standards
and qualifications necessary in relation to getting your
final interprovincial ticket, and depending on the trade,
whether it be mechanics, whether it be carpentry or
whatever, it’s a four year program, it’s set down by the
various outside institutions, just how many months of
theory you have to take, how many months of practical
you have to take in relation to working on a job.

Also, at the same time, it’s my understanding, for
example, in relation to repairmen for furnaces and this
kind of thing, we had a program, I believe, approxi-
mately a year and a half ago, for about — I don’t know if
it was a week or two week duration, I'm not too sure of
the duration, to the time frame in relation to that prog-
ram, but it was put on and these courses are put on, and
if there’s a supply and demand for that.

In relation to enforcing qualifications on a particular
trade such as that, you would have to go through legisla-
tion. That's my understanding, and subsequently you
would have to have somebody to enforce that legislation
similar to the Electrical Protection Ordinance.

1 think that. you know, once we get involved in the



area like that, [ think all Members have got to realize
that you are looking at maybe another one or two man
years, the cost of that man year in relation to enforcing
these particular qualifications to ensure that the people
arequalifiedin relation to whatever work they're doing.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, would it be possible at
this time to comment on the whole vote? Mr. Chairman,
may [ proceed?

Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I've made a few note<
and there are a few things that I would like to bring up
before the Committee. And just on rough calculations
from the estimates. it appears that it wil® be costing the
Yukon approximately $2,190.00 per student that we put
in our school system, for the year. $2,190.00 and that
works out approximately $12.00 per student per day. So
every time you send Johany to school in the morning,
you know that it's costing you or somebody else $12.00.
And everyone accepts tiis, but so often we don” have a
real structure of evaluation. And this is very difficult to
do and 1 know that many, many departments, many
governments across the country, are doing a lot of soul-
searching, a lot of taxpayers are doing a lot of soul-
searching. A lot of boards of trustees are doing a lot of
soul-searching. And they’'re saying, *‘look, we're spend-
ing this type of money, what results do we want tohave?
What do we want to obtain at the end of the route?”

Now, contrary to what some people say, it's not a
babysitting service and it isn’t a place to employ a
bunch of professional people. It’s there for a reason. I
think sometimes we lose sight of the reason for having
the whole institution and we sort of look at it and say
well, we need another teacher here, we need a little
special ed there, we need this here and we need that
there without thinking of where are we going.

Now, 1 notice, ,n our iLsuiiates, that | think we were
budgeting $20,000.00 for curriculum for this coming
year for the Yukon. And I think we're all aware that we,
in the Yukon, use, by Commissioner’s Order, the B.C.
curriculum. There's a prevision in the School Ordi-
nance, by Commissioner's Order, states that cur-
riculum we use in our school system.

We use the B.C. curriculum. At the present time, B.C.
is embarked upon q.ite an extensive program of soul-
searching. What are their schools for? What their
schools should be doing. And I asked the question in the
House the other day, what does the Yukon plan on
doing? The B.C. is going to change their curriculum.
They're doing some surveys, they're making some
proposals. What is the Yukon going to do? And the ques-
tion was we're going to wait and see what happens in
B.C.

So, Mr. Chairman, I submit that B.C.’s decisions are
going to be made on information that’s handed out to the
public and information that’s gathered back from the
public. I refer to this booklet, this pamphlet, and we've
all got copies of it and 1 went over it on the weekend,
have gone through it before, and find it very enlighten-
ing, very interesting, and very pertinent. What should
our children be learning?

If we are going to continue following the B.C. cur-
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riculum after this, should we not, our department, make
sure that this information that is in here is passed out to
the people of the Territory and that the people in the
Territory are given the opportunity to fill in the ques-
tionnaire at the back or even, a supplementary. I can
see other areas where questions could be answered.
Because the results in the Yukon might be quite differ-
ent from the results to this pamphlet that B.C. is getting.
So, while B.C. is doing it, surely we should be doing it
too.

I must stress that I am concerned that we get intor-
mation fromthe people of the Territory, the parents, the
taxpayers, in the Yukon. I am not that concerned about
the information we get {rom pressure groups, such as
p-ofescional organizations such as the YTA, or the so-
cial workers, or whatever it is, or from special interest
groups, such as the CYI. I am more interested in what
individual parents want their children taught in schools.
1 think this would give us a wonderful opportunity to
embark upon this type of a program to see whether in
fact, we shonld be tying in right down the line again *ith
B.C.

| understand t%.:l this cannot be accomplished on
#20,000.06 an.! if we decided to go this route, we would
have to look for additional funding within the existing
budget or try to get acommitm.ent from the government
to get some of the funding that they have, becauseitisa
surplus budget.

Surely another $50,000.00 to try to give the people Jt
the Territory the opportunity to say what they want
their children tolearn, wouldn’t be that bad an exercise,
when I thin!: of how much money we have already for
studies and for consultants and for experts, and the best
experts for what kind of education we should have, is the
guy whose children is receiving it, or the guy who'’s
paying for that education. One point.

You have a perfect, you have a perfect structure
withinthe Territory at the present time, to carry out this
information program. You have your school commit-
tees, they would love to get their teeth into this, I'm
sure, because people are always looking to say, “Well,
what is being taught in the school, what should be taught
in the school, what must the childrenlearn”, and I think
that there’s a lot of — you may not want to use the whole
thing, but you use a lot of the information in here.

I am not saying to pass around this booklet. I'm say-
ing Yukon should prepare their own. That’s one sugges-
tion I have.

The other suggestion is what e were talking about,
the trades training, just a few minutes ago, and going
over the budget, and we look at our young people who
are coming out of the school system, who are looking for
some type of training. We are looking for adults who
require retraining, and I look at our budget, and I see
that we have $459,000.00 for community programs,
which are programs, very necessary, very necessary,
to give people who are not able to read and write, the
opportunity to learn.

But then on the other hand, for our trades training, so
we can train our graduates from our schools, train our
drop-outs from our schools who don’t want to graduate
in the academic system, to retrain the people we have.
We're looking at 445,000 plus another 112,000 so that it's a
terrible imbalance. Just an absolute terrible imbalance
of where we’re putting our money in our training prog-
rams this year



Mr. Chairman, I would submit that we should — if Mr.
Chairman wakes up, I would submit, that we should be
taking one-half of the money that we have for commuu-
ity programs, that would still leave another $250,000.00
for community programs, a quarter of a million, which
isnot bad and take the other 209,000 and put it into trades
training, and go into the program properly.

I know of young people, many of them, who leave our
school system, who drop out. They apply to get into the
vocational school, and there isn’t room for them. I know
of kids who have sat around for two or three months
waiting to get into the vocational school, and at the last
minute they are turned down.

Now, if we have young people who want to take train-
ing, who have left school or who have graduated, I think
we should be giving them the opportunity to get that
training, and maybe we should be looking at other
trades that we should be providing instruction in.

So, Mr. Chairman, I'm just leaving this with the
Committee at this time, and I think when we go back
into it, I'll be coming forward with a resolution or a
recommendation to try to get concurrence of the Com-
mittee to change our priorities in that one area, in the
two areas.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I think the Member
has raised some pertinent points. I would like to first
inform Members that it’s my understanding that the
particular suggested curriculum changes that are out-
lined in that brochure have been sei:' to the school
committees.

It is my understanding that this had come about, and I
don’t disagree that if there’s going to be major changes
in the education system, that the people of the Yukon
are going to have to be informed, and they 're going to —
we’re going to have to find out whether or not they want
these changes to take place.

But, at the same time, I think in all fairness to the
Department of Education, I think we should wait to see
what those actual changes are, so if we go to the public
we can say look, this is what it is now, and this is what
the tentative changes are, is it going to be applicable to
the Yukon situation.

Inrelation to the trade school, I thinktheMember has
raised some pertinent points, but at the same time, I
think you have to remember that the vocational school
is only so big, and to try to add on to that particular
school that we have over there, it’s almost impossible
because of where it’s situated, in relation to making
expansions within the vocational school itself towards
heavy trades.

It’s my understanding at the present time, that except
in one or two or three maybe isolated cases, that we
generally do have for Yukon people that want to take
courses over at the vocational school.

I caution Members that we do have, we follow the
policy of the Manpower, Canada Manpower, in relation
toif astudent isleaving school, that we ask him or her to
go to work for a year, to see whether or not they want to
go to vocational school, rather than transfer strictly
over — straight over to the vocational school.

In other words, subsistence is not offered to that par-
ticular individual. It’s not saying that they can’t go into
the vocational school, but at the same time, if they do,
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are admitted to vocational school, we would not pay
subsistence for that particular individual, because it’s
the policy of the government at the present time, that if
these individuals are quitting school, that they should go
out and find out what work is all about, so that they have
an idea of what they want to do.

Also I think, in relation to the possible, and we're
looking at, at che present time in relation to the possibil-
ity of expansion in industry and this kind of thing, we're
going to have to seriously consider in the next year or
two years, expanding the vocational school, possibly
separating the soft trades, if you like, and the hard
trades and possibly setting up another vocational
school, but this decision will be made by the House at
that time, possibly a year or two years down the road,
depending upon demand.

Mr. Chairman: Committee will recess until 1:30.

(Recess)
-~ VIcKi. . ‘
Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order.
We will continue with debate Establishment 323.
Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, just before we ad-
journed, the Honourable Minister of Education replied
to the suggestions that I made and he said that in order
to expand the courses that would be available it would
be necessary to expand the Vocational School. Well, 1
would hope that those aren’t his last comments, because
I think that there would be some room and some capa-
bility to provide extra trades training without necessar-
ily expanding the physical plant.

I would also remind the Member that there is clas-
sroom space available within the F'. H. Collins complex.
But, Mr. Chairman, I'm prepared toleave it at that and
Iwould hope that the Minister of Education look into the
comments that I made and discusses them with his
departmental officials so that when we come back to the
Vote 3 again, that we can have the views of the Minister
and the officials in his department.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, just for one correction
to what I stated earlier in relation to, I believe it was 322,
when I said that the monies for accredited courses from
the University of Alberta were from the program short
courses. I'd like to put on record that that is for the
non-accredited courses on at night and the accredited
courses, monies for that particular program is taken
out of Establishment 300, and there is $8,000.00 allocated
in that area.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate at this
time on 3237
Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, since we are on ap-
prenticeship training, I was wondering if the Minister of
Education and his staff could possibly look at changing
the program altogether.

Right now, a person has to attend a ten month course,
and I think it’s not the right attitude to take on this
particular thing. If the person takes the course before he



attains the apprenticeship, and I would like to see, my
experience in trades and so, the training course stag-
gered over a four year program, so you have a three
months course in the beginning of it, another three
months course in the middle, and a three months or four
months course at the end.

I think it would have a much better effect on the ap-
prenticeship training program.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it's my understanding
that it depends on the particular trade that you're going
into, what they require in relation to theory as opposed
to practical experience, and it would depend on the
specific trade that one was interested in, one was going
into, whether or not it would require ten months prior to
going into apprenticeship for this kind of thing.

Also, at the same time, it’s my understanding that
depending on where you're working, whether it be in
private industry or whever, that if you are involved with
a private company, say for example in the carpentry
trade, they will do so much practical, stagger it and
send you out for so much theory over a four year period.
So in some cases, this has already been taken into ac-
count, depending on the trade.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have to rise in
disagreement with what the Minister has stated, be-
cause he’s talking about a large corporation, a large
company who has maybe an apprenticeship training
program going on, but apprentices right now in the Ter-
ritory in small shops and small places of work, they
don’t get any benefit from this particular program he’s
talking about at all.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Vote 3
at the present time?

Is it Committee’s wish that we now proceed with Vote
4, or do we consider Bill Number 101, that had been
tentatively put on the agenda for today?

Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it is my understand-
ing that you intendto go to another vote, or do you want
to discuss the Establishment 319 and 306, I believe, yes
306. I'm just wondering what is Committee’s wish,
whether or not they want to discuss it at a future date, or
do they want to discuss it now, in relation to the teacher
training program, and also the establishment for recre-
ation?

Mr. Chairman: As far as the establishment for recre-
ation, there was Notice of Motion given this morning
regarding the draft regulation, which have not yet --
that is, only Notice of Motion has been given, soI think it
would be better if it were considered at a later date.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Okay.
Mr. Chairman: Mr, McKinnon?

Hon, Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I'm just wonder-
ing if the Chair could advise me as to whether we’ll be
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going to the capital side of a Vote, following the O and M,
so that we’ll have a first look at the total Vote prior to
going onto the O and M of another vote?

Mr. Chairman: I've been doing that, but if that’s
Committee’s wish, you mean to consider the capital
expenditures as far as Vote 3 now is concerned?

Is that Commuttee's wish?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, we'll also be doing the
recoveries then, as we go through the Votes.

Mr. Chairman: If it is Committee’s wish, we will. We
have not being doing that, it has not been the procedure
beforehand.

Ms. Millard: I'd like to know why we should change
from the procedure we’ve been using for three years?

Mr. Chairman: Good point, I think what the Minister
was getting at was that it would be more appropriate to
discuss the deparment concerned altogether.

Ms. Millard: We’ve been through three Votes already
and all of a sudden there’s a change we haven’t done the
first two Votes’ capital expenditure yet and are we
going to start back at Vote 1 again?

Mr. Chairman: No. Well, I would like Committee’s
direction, Shall we continue with the O and M, or shall
we go on with the capital expenditures?

Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would, myself, prefer
to do the recoveries as we go through each expenditure
Vote and then also to do the capital, particularly when
you're getting into an area such as education. It would
be very nice to go into
the projected capital program also when we're consid-
ering the vote,

Mr. Chairman: Is Committee agreed?
Some Members: -Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: Page 202. Establishment 2301, Miscel-
laneous school equipment. $79,000_._¢;:‘-
Mr, Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this particular estab-
lishment is related to the on-going program in relation
to replacing stage curtains throughout the Territory.
And my understanding now that curtains for a stage
cost in the area of 7 or $8,000.00 to replace and I under-
stand that they have a life span, apparently, in the area
of five or seven years.

Also, at the same time, there’s monies in this particu-
lar item to make small changes to classrooms like parti-
tions and this kind of thing that can be done in the clas-
sroom. When we’re having, when we see that there has
to be something done, rather than going through the
Department of Public Works, there’s a small amount of
money allocated for that kind of purpose.

Also, at the same time, there has been an on-going



program through the years, for what they term **black-
out breaks”.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Just a.question, Mr. Chairman, of gen-
eralinterest, is. the black-outcurtainin case of an air
attack?

Mr. Chairman: What was the question, Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: The blackout curtains, are they installed
in case of an air attack?

Mr. Chairman: Are you looking for an answer?,

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, 2305 provide funds
for improving grounds at various Yukon schools. Could
I have the --

Mr. Chairman: We are going through Establishment
by Establishment. We are now on 2301, Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.
Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-three oh two, P.A. and Bell
system Replacement, $30,000.00.
Funds to replace systems. Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s my understanding
that tnere s thre :schools in the Whitehorse area; one is
Christ the King, and I believe Whitehorse Elementary
School and another one, and their fire systems, fire
alarm systems are not working properly, and thereforc
have to be fixed.

Also at the same time, in Whitehorse Elementary
School, the P.A. system is not working the way it should,
and it's going to have to be repaired.

Mr. Chairman: Clear?
Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-three oh three, Selkirk Street
School Gymnasium, $500,000.00.
Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: I'm particularly pleased to see this
item in the budget, but 1 just ask the Honourable Minis-
ter, it says “‘To provide funds to commence the con-
struction”. I hope there are enough funds there to com-
plete the construction.

Mr. Chairman: I would hope that it would be more
than $500,000.00 to complete it, Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: I hope so.
The Minister may have a comment.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, as all Members are
aware, we, in the supplementary we voted money in
relation to getting the preplanning engineering done of
that particular facility, and the monies put in for this
particular facility is just part of what the money would
cost -- what the project would cost.
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It is going to depend on the bid, once we get the plans
out and the contract is let. Whether or not, it will be
finished by this late fall remains to be seen.

Mr. Chairman: What is you anticipated commence-
ment date, Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it would depend on
whether or not the budget is passed, for one thing, and
then it would be put out to contract, and then it would
depend on the contractor, when they began the actual
site preparations for this particular facility.

I would suggest it would be probably in May or June.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, is it a two year project
or just the one year?
Will we be asked to vote money again next year?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s going to depend on
whether or not they can complete the facility. I would
suggest that possibly we are going to have to vote money
in the oncoming year as well. It will probably be fo
complete it next year.

Depending on the contractor, once again. You covld
maybe Treasury could elaborate on that.

Mr. Chairman: Is it not incongruous to vote money for
half a building, and then face another year and the
problem of whether you have to vote the other half or
not?

Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the way the budget has
been constructed, the Department was anticipating
starting the building this year and so they anticipate
having to vote more money next year.

Ifthe contractor canconstruct the building this year,
then they will prosably have to be a supplemental to
complete the building. The total projected cost right
now is in excess of $500,000.00. It’s closer to $850,000.00
for the total project.

Mr. Chairman: There is some — I think Members
are disturbed, you know, you're hiding a figure here.
What is the total cost of that gymnasium, that's what
they're interested in voting on? There's no sense, how
can you vote on, you're asking us to vote on a school
gymnasium that looks like it’s going to cost $500,000.00
and that's not the case.

Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it's projected that
the school, the gymnasium, will cost in the area of
$850,000.00. 1 should apologize to the House, I didn't
realize that we were going on the capital part of budget
and I don’t, subsequently, have my notes with me soI'm
taking everything from memory.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: I agree wholeheartedly with your
comments. You know, I'm one that's pushing for the



completion of that, and I would say that $850,000.00,
that's what we should be voting on and that the terms of
the contract should be that it be completed.

I would hope that when the contract is let, which
would be, you know, we would hope that they would
advertise sometime in May, even earlier, on completion
of the budget, that the building commences and is com-
pleted in total. And we know exactly how many dollars
we're going to have to spend.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, I believe that the cor-
rect way is probably the way it was described there that
the whole project probably should have been disclosed.
Perhaps that should have been disclosed in the voting
words, vote wording. However, the Mains themselves
would have to be presented the way they are, in other
words, we are voting $500,000.00 this year with the an-
ticipation that we will have to vote another $350,000.00
next year. But the total project should have been dis-
closed and that probably should have been either in the
vote wording, or perhaps by explanation by the Minis-
ter. But you could not vote $800,000.00 this year, knowing
that you're only going to spend $500,000.00.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock, is this the general pol-
icy in this whole budget? That we’re voting money on
this same basis?

Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, what we're trying to
do in the estimates is to show how much we’re actually
going to spend in '77-78 year. And, it’s my understanding
that it’s estimated that we’ll be spending in the area of
$500,000.00. As we've said, the total project is going to
cost, estimated, approximately in the area of $850,000.00
and it possibly will not be finished til next spring, late
next spring, possibly, depending on the contractor once
again. So, subsequently, that’s why you only have a
portion of what we estimated is the total cost of the
particular project. We're not trying to hide anything.

Mr. Chairman: Well I wouldsubmit, Mr, Lang, that
you are doing precisely that. It’s fine for us to have to
vote this money this year. That's perfectly understand-
able. But obviously, in your explanation of that expendi-
ture, you do have to give us more infermation than what
is here. It's completely misleading. And what I am ask-
ing is are you misleading us elsewhere in the budget in
the same way?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I take an offense to
that comment, because I'd like to think I'm as open as I
possibly can be in relation to my budget. I try to supply
as much information, I have nothing to hide.

Mr. Chairman: Well, you have here.

Hon.Mr.Lang: Well, Istated alittle earlier that I'm
sorry, Mr. Chairman, I did not have my notes down here
in relation to this particular item in the budget and if --

Mr. Chairman: And if no one had asked the ques-
tion, Mr. Lang?
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Hon. Mr. Lang: Well, that's why we're here, Mr.
Chairman for people to ask questions.

Mr. Chairman: I would submit to you that you are to
have a budget here before us so that we're able to vote
on the money and if you read this the way it is here, we
have no way of knowing what the cost of that project is.

The same question still applies. Do you have it, Mr.
Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I was just going to say
that for better for for worse, this is probably just one of
the inadequacies of government appropriation type ac-
counting, butit's standard, what legislatures are asked
to vote is the amount of money that’s going to be spent in
the upcoming year, and I think in principle, we would
certainly agree with you that you don’t get a complete
picture, but there’s been no change in policy incorpo-
rated here.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that
the Minister of Education bring forward a detailed exp-
lanation of the amount that the gymnasium will cost,
including the cost of equipment, a breakdown of the
various aspects of the total project.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I think a little clarification,
further clarification is required, in view of the remarks
of the Chairman in this area, which to me, at least,
implies that the government is trying to conceal some-
thing and do something different, and that is not the
case in this budget.

I would like to ask the witnesses from Treasury if I'm
not correct in my assumption that when this building
that we are now standing in was first planned and put
under construction and put out to bid, it was not done in
stages. They did not vote the total capital cost of that
building in the first year did they, Mr. Treasurer? Mr.
Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: That is correct, Mr. Chairman. All
capital projects of any kind, in any government,
whether it's provincial or federal or territorial, all capi-
tal projects are voted in stages.

You vote the amount of money that you're going to
spend in that particular year, but that is not to say that
the total costs of the project cannot be disclosed at any
time.

Mr. Chairman: That is the problem, Mrs. Whyard.
We acknowledge the problem in having to vote part of
the monies, per year, that’s acknowledged. But what is
not acknowledged is the total amount of the project, and
the inference is, we don’t know what we're voting on
here.

Are we voting on a $500,000.00 gymnasium, or a 5
million dollar gymnasium, and by what facts are pre-
sented here, we just don’t know.

Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, if you wish to proceed
with capital and the Minister does not have the support-



ing information, we do have it, if you wish us to support
him, it’s up to you.
I'm not sure that that is proper for us.

Mr. Chairman: If Committee concurs, we will pro-
ceed.

Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watson: We will require additional informa-
tion on that won't we?

Mr. Chairman: Well, they say they have the infor-
mation for us.

Mrs. Watson: Yes.
Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: 2304, $100,000.00, Old Crow Gym-
nasium.
Mr. Lang?

Hon.Mr. Lang: Mr.Chairman,Idon’t have the total
estimated costs of this particular gymnasium, but I
would like to point out to Committee that we have made
provisions to start actively pursuing the concept of a
gymnasium for the Old Crow school.

What we envisage it entailing is the engineering de-
partment going to Old Crow to see what people want up
there, how they want it constructed, and whether or not
they want it built with local labour.

We have three options, I think. One could be either
huilt of log, depending on whether or not it's feasible
from an engineering viewpoint, and also at the same
time, we could have it stick built with raaterial sent up
through the — by the ‘“‘Brainstorm’ or else at the same
time, we could possibly go with ATCO, but I think that
the people in Old Crow should be consulted what kind of

tructure they would want to be built there, and whether
or not they’re prepared to go into another work program
similar to what took place in the construction of the
airport.

Also at the same time, I think it should be noted that I
understand that there is major construction going on up
at Old Crow, through M.O.T., where a lot of the work
force in Old Crow will be utilized over the summer
months in this particular construction, so that’s the
reason for the limited amount of money in that particu-
lar establishment.

Depending on the decision that’s going to be made
later on in the summer whether it will be a two year or
three year program remains to be seen. Idon’t have the
total estimated cost of the project, possibly the Treas-
urer could help me out on that.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, once again these
funds are just to commence the project and the total
projected cost right now is in the neighbourhood of a
million, three.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you.
Ms. Millard?
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Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Chairman. It's not very often
I can stand on the floor of this Assembly and commend
the Department of Education and I'm very happy to be
able to do so on looking into a gymnasium in Old Crow.
Because I think that that’s far more important than the
final decision. The input from the community will be
important because I know that there are people who are
not that concerned with having a gymnasium in Old
Crow, there are some who are.

We really must, in a big project like this in a very
small community, get input directly from the commun-
ity. So I must commend the department for saying that
they’re going to be doing this.

I'd like to knowif they’re going to come up this sum-
mer and are there any definite plans to do this, is there a
date set down? And, so that I can report back to the
community that these things are going to be discussed
with them and maybe do some preparation on it.

One of the questions I have also is something they
should be discussing with the community is the fact that
the school is already being heated by wood, which is a
very important economic resource in the Yukon, and
I'm wondering whether the gymnasium would be
heated in the same way or is this still under considera-
tion?

Hon.Mr.Lang: Mr.Chairman,Idon’thave answers
to any of the questions from the Honourable Member.
All T can assure the Member is that once people are
going up to Old Crow, she will be notified to that effect,
that people are going up to present various options and
this kind of thing to see what people do want.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Yes, just in supplementary to that.
Yes, I would very much appreciate having some notice
of someone going up because, as the Minister is aware,
there was a lot of confusion the last time members of the
department went up there to discuss the gymnasium,
because I was totally unaware of the fact that it was
under discussion, and I was misleading the school
committee. And, so there was quite a bit of confusion
and I think that we can avoid this to the embarrassment
of both me and the department.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, if there was anv “is-
cussions of a gymnasium, it must have been very tenta-
tive because there was no approval from this depart-
ment to go up and discuss in a formal way, the concept of
a gymnasium in Old Crow. The decision has to be made
here first before any of my departmental officials will
make any commitments on behalf of this department.

Mr. Chairman: Clear?
2305. School Ground Improvements. $100,000.00.
Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would like to bring
ina paper inon this particular establishment, asit’sa —
we're looking at a five year program in relation to up-
grading all our school grounds throughout the Territ-
ory. So I would like to suggest that possibly I could have
a paper in here next week, when we're reconsidering



going through the vote once again.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: 1 would like to comment first for the
opportunity given to the Minister to bring his paper in.
We're talking about a five year program. With all due
respect, when Mr. Mclntyre was the Executive
Member looking after the portfolio in which the Minis-
ter is now looking after, I asked a particular question on
school grounds and in reference to the Van Gorder
School in Faro.

The answer | got to my question, which is in reference
to this five year suggested proposed programming,
school improvements. One, the original contract in 1970
provided a sum in excess of $10,000.00 to clear and level
the surface and playground area. This was in 1970. Very
littel was done. Two, in 1972, no funds were allotted for
ground improvements, except $5,000.00 to resurface the
field with crushed gravel and to pave the parking lot.
First of all, I'd like to know where the field is? What they
were supposed to have spent $5,000.00 on?

Number 3 item, no funds were allocated in 1973 for
ground improvements, even that’s the third year, so
we're looking at — supposing they spent $15,000.00,
nobody’s seen it yet, but in number 4, “No funds allo-
cated in 1974 for ground improvements”, the budgetary
inputs had been completed at the time of a number of
letters, Mrs. Watson’s letter to Dr. Fast — or blah, blah,
blat.

“Repairs were carried out to the northeast corner” —
of what? And the — the rear entrance of the school was
resurfaced, in addition a major playground apparatus
was purchased and installed at a cost of approximately
$2,500.00. I don’t believe it costs that much, but if you
have got bills to prove that, fine.

It goes on to say, the last item, which I find very
ironic, “The Engineering Department has been asked
to construct a baseball diamond with backstop and
erect soccer goals during the summer of 1975”. 1 find all
this very interesting, because none of it's been done.

Now. the Minister very kindly has kindly advised us
that we're looking at another five year program, und at
another$100,000.00. Well it’s nice to plant roses in front
of F.H. Collins School, but when it comes down to track
and field in the outlying communities, the only way
they’re going to do that is if they run down the highway,
because I have been in discussions with the Advisory
Committee, the School Advisory Committee, and we
still find — trying to figure out where all this money was
spent, if it was spent, where all the crushed gravel has
been laid, if it has been laid, and where is it? Because if
we're going to go through another five year program
like you're suggesting, maybe the Member from Pelly
in five years’ time should ask the same questions I
asked last year, and he would probably get exactly the
same answers.

I just hope you take that into consideration.

Mr. Chairman: 2306, Watson Lake School Exten-
sion, $25,000.00.
Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, again, Mr. Chairman, it says
““To fund a study to plan a school extension.”
Now, is that study just to plan it, or are we actually
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going to get some plans, you know, to get an architect to
get the plans drawn up, or is it just really to figure out if
we really should be planning a school?

Mr. Chkairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s my understand-
ing in the Watson Lake area, we have two schools there,
and there’s some question of whether one is engineering
— is sound from an engineering viewpoint for an exten-
sion, and the concept is to go down and have a look at
both sites, to see which one would be best suited for an
extension.

I'think we're all well aware that Watson Lake is one of
the areas that could possibly grow a great deal here in
the next couple of years, and I think we should be doing
something in this area to provide for future growth in
Watson Lake.

Whether or not an extension we put on that particular
school a year from now or two years, remains to be seen,
but once the engineering architectural study has been
done, subsequently we will at least have it to draw from
when that time comes that there has to be an extension
put on one of the schools there.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: I still may not be just clear on that.
Then this is actually an architectural plan you're talk-
ing about here? It’s not to work our statistics and pupil
ratios, and all the rest of it, to find out if in fact another
school is required? This is strictly an engineering ar-
chitectural input?

Okay.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the
Minister of Education whether you feel that yourequire
a school extension, or there is reason to do a study.

Is it because of the increase in student population at
the elementary level, or at the secondary level?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, I don't
have any of the school statistics there, but it’s my un-
derstanding at the elementary level. I think we’'ve had
an increase in the Watson Lake school population in the
area of 100 students over the last year and a half, so it’s
been quite substantial.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the study that the De-
partment of Education is going to embark npon, will it
include investigating and seeing whether it's reasona-
ble and feasible to construct an elementary school at
Upper Liard, so that you're not going to have to continue
to bus these children to Watson Lake?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this could be taken
under consideration, I guess. I have never really dis-
cussed that.

I took it that the children in Upper Liard were quite
content in going to school in Watson Lake and making



use of the various facilities that are available in that
community.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, wouldn’t it be up tothe
people at Upper Liard?

Now would be the time, if you're going to do an exten-
sion of Watson Lake, wouldn’t now be the time to deter-
mine whether they would want a primary, at least
primary, school there at Upper Liard?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, being therep-
resentative from that area, I have had no great prob-
lems in this regard, and I might say that we could be
talking about putting another school at the Watson Lake
airport because that’s a little further away than Upper
Liard from Watson Lake, and perhaps we could think
about putting another school down on the boundary and,
you know, it has posed no problem, certainly in my
constituency, this question of busing children 8 and 10
miles to attend school.

I'm pleased to see that there is a program for school
expansion in the hopes that we can get out of using the
portable schools that we have in addition to the two big
schools.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: I just wondered if the Honourable
Member is suggesting that we introduce capital pro-
jects keeping in line with all the R.C.M.P. you've got in
Watson Lake.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'm going to insist,
contrary to what the Honourable Member from Watson
Lake is saying at the present time, because he really
doesn’t fall into the category of a concerned parent, we
have fallen into the trap in Whitehorse of building large
complexes of schools and then we're always busing and,
if hindsight had, you know, we could use hindsight, we
wouldn’t have built all of these large complexes; we'd
have scattered them around Whitehorse. Especially the
elementary schools and even the primary schools.

So, when you’re looking at Watson Lake, another ex-
tension was what we did at Porter Creek. There was
four expansions to the one school and they’re busing
from all areas of Porter Creek into the one area. It
would have been better, maybe, to have a primary
school some place else in Porter Creek.

Shouldn’t now, before you embark upon another ex-
pansion program to an existing school, see whether it's
feasible and viable and whether the people want an
elementary in one of the other areas? I think this is the
time to do it and the people in the areas should be the
ones who would be affected by it, who should be the ones
that should more or less be polled on this.

With all due respect to the Honourable Member from
Watson Lake, I'm not indicating that he shouldn’t have
an opportunity to, but I'm just -- we do -- we have made
mistakes in the construction of our schoolsin the Yukon.
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman, I just point
out to the Honourable Member, who perhaps hasn't
looked into it, that a great number of people from Wat-
son Lake — or from Upper Liard, have now moved into
Two-and-a-Half-Mile at Watson Lake. They've relo-
cated. Had we built a school there in the past, we could
be in trouble today.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to ask
a question and I haven't heard the answer yet. Who's
going to conduct the study. Is it the private consulting
outfit, or is the government themselves going to do it?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr.Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that
if, since it is an architectural/engineering plan that is
going to berequired, I would suggest that it is going to be
a consultant, you know, an engineering consultant.

Mr. Chairman: It’s probably the same ones that
planned the school ground at Faro, so they’ll be availa-
ble for your questioning for several years.

Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: A question of interest, with respect
tothat architectural/engineering plan — is that done by
tender, invitation or is it just a firm named?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it’s my understand-
ing that something like this would probably go out for
tender; I'll have to double-check and see, but I would
suggest that it would.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Is there not a policy that we have
with respect to that kind of thing in Yukon at this time? 1
don’t know; I'm just asking. 1'm sure some of the Minis-
ters could answer that.

Mr. Chairman: I'm not too sure. Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Fools rush in where angels fear
to tread, I’ll try to answer the question. As far as I'm
concerned, in my department, I am given to understand
that if I want something built or remodelled or reno-
vated, there’s a staff upstairs that’s supposed to be ap-
proached to do so. And there are monies in the budget
which provide for them, this has always baffled me,
which means that I get charged to pay them to do that
for me while they're being paid to do everything they’re
being paid to do anyway by the taxpayer. I've never
been able to understand that, Mr. Chairman.

But there are competent people up there who do the
pre-planning and if it is going to be a major project
which requires architectural expertise, I would expect
it to be put out to bid to a firm which has that kind of
expertise. Is that the answer you were looking for, Mr.
Chairman?



Mr. Chairman: Well, it was an answer.

Mr. Lengerke: It's certainly the policy that the
Minister operates by, anyway.

Mr, Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, maybe the Minister of
Education could get a little more details on this for us,
because if it's pre-engineering, we've already voted
money for it.

Mr. Chairman: I think that he’s already taken that
as an undertaking.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm not about to
take too much sides in argument; however, I have a
little say for on behalf of the Member from Watson
Lake, it may be that the busing might be just as well
when you consider that the bus, at the present price,
could operate for fifty years at what we would spend
today if we built a million schools. And I'm sure it will
cost a million dollars to do any school.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate?
Twenty-three sixteen, Vocational School Equipment,
$53,300.00. Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I was just wondering if the Minister
could give us a brief breakdown explanation, please.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, the monies allo-
cated in this area are for replacing equipment that has
— either needs repair or is worn out, for example, wel-
ders and this kind of thing. Possibly engineering has a
further breakdown on it, because I don’t have it with
me.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I've got a rough
breakdown. $32,200.00 has been allocated for hard
trades courses; $1,700.00 for soft trade courses;
$5,000.00 for the community program; $7,600.00 for the
commercial courses, and $2,750.00 for academic
courses.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it's for repairing
typewriters inrelation to the commercial programs and
this type of thing, and the vocational end of things, it's
for the repairing, as I said, of welders or the buying of
new welders and minor equipment such as, for an ex-
ample, welding rod and this kind of thing, so it takes in
— it encompasses a whole wide range of items that are
needed for the everyday operation of the vocational
school. No matter what the program is.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?
Mr. Lengerke: It doesn’t reflect, then, if the voca-

tional school are going to buy a new grader or something
like that, for equipment — maybe they don’t, they get
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that from highways, do they?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, he's answered his own ques-
tion, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that’s really not a
great sum, is it, when you're thinking of a vocational
school doing a program. However, I noticed $5,000.00 for
community courses. Now, what capital equipment do
you need for community courses, other than tape recor-
ders and projectors, and really, we've been buying
these every year, every year; while I was in the De-
partment of Education, while Mr. McIntyre was, we've
been buying tape recorders and projectors, and I won-
der where they all are, and we're going to buy another
$5,000.00 worth of equipment for community courses.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: I can’t really answer that specifi-
cally, Mr. Chairman, but I can say that we are embark-
ing on a program to control our capital assets, or have
greater control over our capital assets, and hopefully
before this House sits next year I'll be able to tell you
every department has an inventory, and it’s going to be
handed over from one principal to the next, this kind of
thing. We've embarked on it now.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Supplementary to what the Treas-
urer was saying then, doI understand from his remarks
that there is not a program or an inventory control now
in every department?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, there is, there is a
control of inventories and capital assets. What I'm say-
ing is that we feel that maybe it could be better.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it really has no-
thing to do with this particular vote. I don’t know if
somebody asked whether or not, but could we have alist
of who belongs to the hard trades and who belongs to the
soft trades, because it’s a complete new expression.

I mean, I have heard of blue collar workers before,
and white collar workers. All of a sudden now, we havea
hard trade and a soft trade. I wonder where the bakers
fit into there.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I don’t have an exact
definition, but for example, under soft trades is the
nursing course and the commercial cooking course.

Mr. Chairman: Twenty-three forty-one, Vocational
School, House Construction, $50,000.00.
Mr. McCall?



Mr. McCall: Iwonder if the Minister could giveus a
breakdown as to this particular item, where it's going to
be constructed and whatever? I would like to see it done
in the outlying communities for a change, instead of
Whitehorse.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I handed out infor-
mation relating to this particular item; if the Honoura-
ble Member wants me to read it verbatim, I’ll be glad to,
if I can find it.

Mr. Chairman: The information you handed out is
very valuable, but does it actually refer to the budget of
this year? It refers to '75-76, '76-77 and even previous
years, but not ...

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, the outline in this
information provided to Members will — is the program
that’s followed by the vocational school for building a
home. It’s divided into two phases: one is the basement,
one is the construction of the house itself; and it goes on
an ongoing basis, and the reason that there’s a differen-
tial in the amount of monies voted this year as com-
pared to what was spent last year was because, number
one, we added a small classroom to the vocational
school due to the fact that they needed it, and also at the
same time the instructor was sick for a short duration.
That’s the reason there was a discrepancy in that
amount of money, but it basically follows that outline,
Mr. Chairman.

I should add that the monies spent in that particular
area are recoverable,

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don’t think the Hon-
ourable Member from Pelly got an answer, and I would
be very interested in the answer.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I thought from the --
I"'m not too sure what the question is now, but my under-
standing of the question was that he wanted information
that was provided in this particular information paper.

Mr. Chairman: I don’t think it does, Mr. Lang, that’s
the problem.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Could he repeat the question?

Mr. McCall: I forgot the question, Mr. Chairman,
with all this hassling that’s going on.

Mr. Chairman: No, it's a breakdown of the $50,000.00
item in the '77-78 budget, I think that’s what you were
asking, Mr. McCall.

Mr. MeCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I understood part
of the question anyway, the Honourable Member was
asking if ahny consideration had been given to construct-
ing one of these type of houses outside of Whitehorse, in
one of the rural communities.

I was rather interested to hear the answer to that. I
know that there's many implications and what have
you, but I would like to hear if any consideration has
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ever been given.
Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: That’s exactly the point. I hope I don't
get the explanation from the Minister that it's not feasi-
ble, because the outlying communities being so far
away from Whitehorse, and the vocational school and
whatever else goes along with it, when one considers
that we manage to arrange the vocational students to go
out tothe Faro Airport and do quite a good job out there.

So 1 was wondering, as part of my query, why it has
never considered an outlying community be selected for
this type of a project, where we may have students come
from that actual community itself. And the other point
is, that yes, I would like a complete breakdown as to
costs items of such a project such as this, in this budget.
Not what went on last, what’s going to happen now.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr.Lang: Mr. Chairman, it's my understanding
that the reasons the houses have been constructed in
Whitehorse is number one, there has been a demand for
that type of construction, and we have the ability of
selling. There is a supply and demand for housing in the
Whitehorse area, more so than in a lot of the other small
er communities in the Yukon.

Also, at the same time, it's my understanding that in
order to room and board these people, we do it at a
minimal cost at the vocational school, if they are from
the outlying areas, and also at the same time, we have a
shop to teach them the theoretical part of carpentry in
that particular program.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, really, Mr. Chairman,
that’s not answering my question. I mean, we're all
fully aware that we have a shop in Whitehorse Training
Centre, that’s supposed to be fully equipped, et cetera,
et cetera, but the Minister, I believe, is being very eva-
sive.

I want an answer as to why it is not being considered,
why this particular project cannot be done out in the
outlying communities. It is no different than it is here in
Whitehorse, and I want a proper explanation, as a con-
sideration.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I can't elaborate any
further than what I have already. I know in some areas
of the Yukon, if we were to send out this particular
course to build a house, where there’s permafrost and
this kind of thing, we would wind up costing $150,000.00
and you wouldn’t be able to sell it, and that’s -- well
that’s true, you've got a couple of areas in the Yukon
that you just cannot construct a home for what the costs
are here and recover those costs.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?
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Mr. Berger: I take objection to this, because -- espe-
cially the permafrost area, because if every house
owner, especially in the Dawson City area, had spent
$150,000.00 on a home, there would be nobody living
there.

I think there would be much experience gained by a
vocational training course to go to a permafrost area, to
find the difficulties in building a house, and I can't see
any reason why it should cost $150,000.00 for a home.

Right now, there’s a beautiful home has been built in
Dawson City by a private citizen for $27,000.00, and I
cannot see where the government's house should cost
$150,000.00.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think it's been
gone over pretty well except for one thing. I would wel-
come such a program, that would build houses probably
in the outlying communities, however in answer to Mr.
McCall's query as to why, I have one answer. In the
Teslin area, I don’t know about any other areas, but in
the Teslin area, the government would not have any
land to give themselves to build a house on, if they treat
th;lmselves the way they treat us, so it would be impos-
sible.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, I just thought it important at
this juncture, Mr. Chairman, to point out that there are
two ways of doing things, of course. There’s the right
way and then there’s the government way, and I'm sure
asinthe case with Northern Health Services, who built a
doctor’s residence in Watson Lake, it cost them well
over a hundred thousand dollars to build that home. I
})elieve itdid, Mr. Chairman, we checked with this legis-
ature.

Mr. Chairman: Order, please.
Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: I wonder if the Minister could advise us
whether the final decision has been taken as to what this
next project’s going to be done. And if it is, why are they
not considered outlying communities?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Well, Mr. Chairman, I'll have to bring
that in.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate?
If you’ll turn to Page 69, Expenditures Recoveries.
Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the Rehabilitation Ser-
vices, is that a revenue in the '77-78 year?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. Page 69.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Page 69? Mr. Chairman, it is a recov-
ery for 1977-'78. Rehabilitation Services provides
spaces in the Vocational School for referrals from their
particular area and, subsequently, we recover that
money. So to all intents and purposes, you could add the
one million, one hundred thousand, plus the 50,000 for a
total of our recoveries in relation to spaces purchased in
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the Vocational School.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, but Rehabilitation Ser-
vices now is under the Department of Health, is it now?
The Health and Welfare?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this is correct, but my
understanding is they are under a differeni agreement
than the Vocational School, so subsequently, when they
refer somebody to the Vocational School for upgrading
or some, to take a course. they purchased that space on
behalf of that client. So, subsequently. we, through the
Vocational School, recover the cost, so we have to show
it in our recoveries.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson,

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, do you recover the cost
from Manpower or from the Canada Assistance Act?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, Treasury can correct
me if I'm wrong, my understanding is that it’s under the
Canada Assistance Act through which the Rehabilita-
tion Service is structured. And subsequently, we recov-
ery costs through them, just like we do through Man-
power for using spaces within the Vocational School for
recovering the money for the cost of running our prog-
rams.

Mr. Chairman, could I ask the Treasurer if that's not
correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that’s correct. The De-
partment of Education submits an invoice to the De-
partment of Health and then, for $50,000.00 and that’s
where that $50,000.00 is. And then the Department of
Health in turn receives a cost recovery from, I think it's
VRDP division of CAP.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, under Occupational
Training Recovereies then, is that recovered from
Manpower, are those the recoveries there? That's
Manpower, isn't it?

Hon. Mr. Lang: That is correct.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, wouldn't it be much
clearer for Rehabilitation Services if the Department
that expends the money, which is Health, show the re-
covery?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, all I can add to this is
that we provide the service and subsequently, we have



to recover the costs in our department. And we're the
one providing the service so subsequently, it shows in
the Department of Education’s budget in the re-
coveries.

Mr. Chairman. Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, is that 100 per cent re-
covery there? You know, is that 100 per cent recovery?
How much did we spend to recover 50,000 and where?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, at present, the Voca-
tional School calculates a per course cost for every
course they put on and then they use that per course cost
for, in main for billing the Department of Manpower for
the spaces which Manpower buys. However, in the case
of people entitled to Rehabilitation training, that same
per course cost is billed to our own department of Health
and that’s where that $50,000.00 recovery is.

In the Department of Health’s budget, there is a
$50,000.00 expense which corresponds to that. The De-
partment of Health, in turn, turns around and recovers
that cost from VRDP, which is a division of CAP, and
that particular recovery is included in the Health De-
partment recoveries on Page 118.

So this $50,000.00, which you're looking at right now, is
aninternal recovery. We are recovering it from another
government department and it’s done that way in order
to be allowable under the VRDP cost-sharing. It’s
another one of these things that it’s difficult to distill into
the ultimate transaction, becuase of the bookwork
that’s involved, but basically, that’s an internal recov-
ery there and in turn we recover that, or a portion
thereof, under Health.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: But Mr. Chairman, are you under --
your courses under the vocational school, are you
charging -- is the expenditure to provide those courses
included in there?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, yes, within the budget
of Establishment 321, there are sufficient funds to put on
courses.

Now, based on those course costs, this recovery figure
is determined. If it costs a thousand dollars to put on a
course and there’s 50 students, well then they calculate
the recovery by -- just be dividing one by the other, then
they bill the Department of Health accordingly.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: But you also show it as an expense, Mr.
Chairman, you also show it as an expenditure in the
Department of Health.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: That’s correct, Mr. Chairman, there’s

a corresponding $50,000.00 expenditure in the Depart-
ment of Health.
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Mrs. Watson: And a recovery?

Mr. Williams: And a recovery.
Mr. Chairman, I'm not certain that the recovery is a
hundred per cent, it’s probably closer to 50 per cent.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, doesn't it make
our budget look a little unrealistic? We're getting
$50,000.00 charged to both education and health for the
same service, and we're getting the revenue on both
sides. You know, we're having a revenue of $50,000 in
health and a revenue of 50,000 in education. Isn't that
sort of throwing the picture of your budget; you're
charging your money twice.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that’s correct and if
you distilled the transaction, what you would probably
come up with is an expenditure of $50,000.00 and a re-
covery of $25,000.00; however, if you look at all the com-
ponents of this budget, you’ll see expenditures of a
hundred thousand dollars and recoveries of $75,000.00,
comingov >anetcosttoY.T.G. of $25,000.00, but this is
the book work that we have to go through in order to
make the expenditure eligible for sharing under
V.R.D.P.

For instance, in the past, when the Department of
Rehabilitation Services was in the Department of Edu-
cation, I'm led to believe that these expenditures could
never be treated for cost-sharing purposes because they
were — and they called it an internal charge within the
Department, but now that rehabilitation is in health, for
some reason, we can now effect that internal billing
arrangement and therefore legitimize the transaction
for cost-sharing purposes.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, when it was in
education, there used to be a recovery shown for those
programs.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, there was arecovery,
but not for this aspect of it. The recovery related to
people being sent outside for training, it related to al-
lowances paid to those people, and related to certain
administrative costs.

Those costs were and still are recoverable; however,
the portion of the costs for actually training students at
the vocational school was always hidden before, and
there wasn’t a recovery for that element of it.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: So, Mr. Chairman, it’s a hundred per
cent recoverable then, under the agreement?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the Department of
Education recovers a hundred per cent of its costs from
the Department of Health, but I believe the Department
of Health only recovers approximately fifty per cent of



that expenditure from Canada Assistance.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I'm curious about the
metric program.

In Establishment 300, we have a total cost of 25,800
and salary consisting of 17,800, so the Territory is pick-
ing up the difference, is it?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, there was just a fig-
ure put in this particular recovery because we don’t
know whether or not the program is going to go ahead. It
could be 15, it could be 20, we really don’t know. It’s
really up in the air.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, if it does go ahead, do
we know what the recovery will be? Will it be a hundred
per cent or seventy-five per cent?

Hon.Mr. Lang: Iwouldlike tothink, Mr. Chairman,
that it would be a hundred per cent, but that remains to
be seen.

Mr. Chairman:
3?
Mr. Berger?

Is there any further debate on Vote

Mr. Berger: Sorry, Mr. Chairman. I was just won-
dering if we could possibly get the information, more on
air brakes. I would like to get the information of the total
cost of the course put on in Dawson, including private
people and government people.

I also would like to know how many people attended
the courses, government and private people.

I also would like to know how much was recovered
from private people and how much the cost was to the
government.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Vote
3?
I will declare a brief recess.

‘Recess)

Mr. Chairr.nan: I now call this Committee to order.

For consideration of Vote 4, Mr. Gillespie has joined
us as witness.

Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, just out of curiosity,
since we started doing the project capital for Vote 3,
aren’t we going to do the Treasury Department project
budget capital first, because that was Vote 2?

Mr. Chairman: No, Idon’t think we’ll jump around.
I agree, we shifted courses, but we're not going to start
jumping back and forth.

Ms. Millard: So our procedure from now on will not
be to do the project capital after the vote?

Mr. Chairman: Yes, it will.
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Ms. Millard: Then, we're going to forget about pro-
ject capital for Vote 2 until ...

Mr.Chairman: We'llconsider each Vote and each of
the items under that Vote, including project capital. At
the time we’re going to deal with the one end. We did not
do that for the first two votes, but we have a lot of
information that has been brought forward, so when we
go through those Votes, really still for the first time,
we'll pick it up then, okay?

Establishment 400, Territorial Secretary and Regis-
trar General, $1,252,300.00.

Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Are we on Establishment 400, then,
under this ...

Mr. Chairman: Yes.

Ms. Millard: Okay. I have several small questions.
Under man years, it’s been increased from 46.5 to 56; I
wonder if we could have an explanation of that. It's
obviously adding something that wasn’t there before.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, man years are some-
what complicated in this Department by virtue of the
fact that 22 man years, pardon me, 15 man years had
been moved from the Records Office, under the Ter-
ritorial Secretary, to Archives. Sothereis a net loss of 15
man years there. Into Establishment 400 from Estab-
lishment 403, there were six positions transferred —
typists, mail clerks, mailroom supervisors and this type
of person.

In addition to that, there are three new positions — a
printing services co-ordinator, a steam boiler inspector
and one new position in stationery stores.

I’'msorry, I've complicated the matter by stating that
we moved 15 people from the Records Office, I believe.

Onthefirst page,on Page 72 of the Estimates, it shows
adecrease from 67.5 man years to 56 man years, and the
complicating factor there is the transfer of records of-
fice to archives.

Now, within Vote 400, we have six positions transfer-
red of the nature I spoke about, mail and messenger
services, and then the three new positions, printing ser-
vices co-ordinator, steam boiler inspector and station-,
ery stores position.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, woula it be possible
to get a list identifying all people under the Territorial
Secretary, like all the inspectors that we did have in the
previous budget year?

Mr. Gillespie:
it's easily done.

Yes, Mr. Chairman, I’ll bring that in;
Mr. Lengerke: Thank you.
Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Could we also have some explanation
of the services under the Employment Liaison Section,



and I would like to know what Joint Stop COS means.

Mr. Williams: 1 know what the COS is Mr. Chair-
man; that’s ‘companies’.

Under the Companies Ordinance, there is considera-
ble work to be done, and that comes under this particu-
lar Establishment.

The employment liaison position at the moment hand-
le« — this was a federal position which served to find
:mployment for native people both within the Territor-
ial Government and in industry.

I think it was two years ago that position was trans-
ferred to the Territorial Government and placed in the
Territorial Secretary's office, and continues to function
in that manner.

The employment liaison officer is also used to help out
with other aspects of the Territorial Secretary’s office,
the Territorial Secretary’s responsibility, including
consumers’ legislation. n=d a few other items of that
nature. I don't have the exact list of responsibilities here
now, but the main thing is, is that this is a position that
was transferredto us from the Federal Government two
years ago.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, could we have an indi-
cation of how successful that position has been in plac-
ing native people within the Territorial Government?

Mr. Gillespie: Icanbring figures; Idon’t have them
with me, but I can bring figures for the Members’ be-
nefit, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was just wonder-
ing if Mr. Gillespie could give us — you mentioned the
steam boiler inspector is a new job, and I'm just looking
for the man years for that particular job.

I wonder if Mr. Gillespie could supply me with that
information?

Mr. Gillespie: Par.onme, did you ask for where the
man year is?

Ir. McCall: Yes.

Mr. Gillespie: The man year is in Establishment
0.

Mr. McCall: 1t is?

Mr. Gillespie: Under Inspections.

*Mr. McCall: 1 see.

- So, out of that 8 man years, Mr. Chairman, how many
is allocated for steam engineer inspector, or steam
boiler inspector?

Mr. Gillespie: One year, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, with all due respect, I
believe this is a new job, is this correct?

Mr. Gillespie: That's correct.
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Mr.McCall: How come we budgeted for it last year,
one year?

Mr. Gillespie: We didn’t budget — at least, I don’t
believe we budgeted for it last year. Last year what
happened was, we tried to obtain the steam boiler in-
spection service by contract. This proved not to be a
satisfactory method of doing it because we didn’t — we
were unable to get somebody for sufficient time, and so
this year we are moving to a full-time steam boiler
inspector.

Mr. McCall: ] have a correction. Mr. Chairman:
that is correct. I was looliing at the wrong estimates. It
was — thie "71-75 man year was for a steam boiler inspec-
tor.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I notice a tremendous
increase in several Primaries, notably 20, 32, 35, 50 and
61. I'm wondering if that has anything to do with the
increase in man years, or what other indications have
you?

Mr. Gillespie: In this Primary 20, the major in-
crease there is for the cost of printing Hansard, which
has gone up very substantially. That is the Votes and
Proceedings, I should say, Mr. Chairman, which have
gone up very substantially over the past year. Primary
20 also includes items such as coroners’ expenses, the
expenses of the Electric Public Utilities Board_and var-
ious items of that nature. The Debates and Proceedings,
$25,000.00 alone, was accounted for by that item. That’s
of the increase.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: While we're on that Frimary 20, what'’s
the $21,000.00 for administration? What's entailed in
that?

Mr. Gillespie: Electric Public Utilities Board,
$3,500.00 for ten meetings and at a per diem of $100.00
per day and consulting fees, hearing expenses, sec-
retarial and recording expenses, for $15,000.00 and
$2,500.00 for fees for examination and supervision of
Credit Union activities.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, just to remind our wit-
ness of the numbers of the Primaries, which I was curi-
ous ahout because of the increase, 32, 35,50 and 61. In 321
notice, as well, there’s quite an increase in communica-
tions in almost every budget and I presume that was
what was said before, was that it was under-budgeted
previously.

Mr. Gillespie: In addition, 32 is Communications,
isn’t it? We have taken over from the federal govern-
ment the costs for the telex index machines, which be-
fore had been borne by the federal government and are
now being borne by the territorial government. That
explains the major increase in Primary 32. In 35, I be-
liheve, 65,000 of the 75,000 is for postage. I'll just check
that.



Sorry, I'm told it's almost $70,000.00. Sixty-five
thousand dollars is the correct figure, Mr. Chairman.

There's some bulk mailings that go in addition to that,
that amount to $4,500.00, and some incidental freight,
postage packing and so on for another $5,000.00 adding
to $75,000.00.

Ms. Millard: Excuse me, Mr.Chairman, just on that
Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: -- where was this shown in previous
years?

Mr. Gillespie: In previous years, Mr. Chairman, it
was shown under Establishment 403, Records Office,
but when the Records Office was transferred to Arc-
hives, some of the services previously carried out under
the Records Office were retained under the Territorial
Secretary’s Office, and they now appear here.

The mail room, the messenger service, shipping and
receiving, stationery stores, were all retained by the
Territorial Secretary, and not transferred to Archives
with the rest of the Records Office.

61, $63,000.00, I'm not sure, an increase from
$24,000.00 is a — is the rental of new equipment and the
Queen’s Printer.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the witness has
said rental of new equipment. I was wondering, what
type of equipment and if it wouldn’t be more economical
to be purchasing that type of equipment. I have no idea
what it is, but maybe he can just elaborate on it.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, that’s a good ques-
tion. We decided this first year to rent the e, ...ent,
with an option to purchase. Once - Lave found out
whether we have preciselv t» : ;ght equipment and how
well it worke, su we nave chosen to follow this route for
this fiisL year.

Next year, we may well purchase it.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I would assume in
Primary 62, the $9,000.00 under Inspections, would that
be for the rental, internal rental of cars, pool cars and
this kind of thing?

Mr. Gillespie: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there’s just one
thing on the inspections, eight man years. It also in-
cludes, or will include eventually a possible new posi-
tion to inspect trucks on the highway, so that the onus of
safety is now on the drivers?

Mr. Gillespie: No, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?
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Ms. Millard: Just on that subject, what are the in-
spectors that come under the inspections then? Are they
interchangeable, or are there certain positions for cer-
tain inspections?

Mr. Gillespie: To a certain extent, they're inter-
changeakle, if I can find in this mass of paper — a chief
field inspector, that's a chief inspector, a safety inspec-
tor, whose work is mainly related to the Workmen's
Compensation Ordinance, a boiler inspector, that's
three, and then one, two, three other inspectors, that’s
six, and — no, four other inspectors, plus a clerk typist.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I'd like to ask the, Mr. Gillespie, how
many mining inspectors do we have?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, we have — the mining
inspections service is carried out on our behalf by the
Federal Department of Indian and Northern Affairs,
under direction from the Territorial Government.

Mr. Chairman: Mr., McCall?

Mr. McCall: What you're saying then, that the
mines inspector is a federal civil servant?

Mr. Gillespie: That's correct.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, | take it, federal mines
inspector is on the salary paid by the YTG?

Mr. f}illespie: I believe, hir. Chairman, his salary is
paid direct'y by Indian and Northern Affairs and is not
recov iy from Territorial Government.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I take it then, that the Mines Inspector
is totally covered and paid for by the federal depart-
ment? .

Mr. Gillespie:. That’s correct, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Further questioning along those lines,
Mr. Chairman. Does this federal inspector do the in-
specting of the dust level situation at Clinton Creek,
which is under our jurisdiction?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, yes, both he and other
members of that department have, on occasion, per-
formed services, dust level inspection services, and!
special studies in connection with dust levels, for the!
territorial government, at no cost to the territorial gov-
ernment.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?
Ms. Millard: Further to that, since we aren’. paying

him, how can we expect a job to be done thoroughly. Is
there some agreement that’s signed with the Depart-



ment that a certain amount of work is produced? Or is it
just done on a kind of casual basis?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, this is a service that is
being carried out for a number of years by the federal
government for the territorial government, under our
Mining Safety Ordinance. He is answerable to the
Commissioner, through myself, and [ bear the respon-
sibility for the work that he carries out.

Mr Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, since our witness is re-
sponsible for his work, could he give us some idea of the
number of hours that have been spent at Clinton Creek
over the past year in this service?

Mr. Gillespie: | will endeavour to find that informa-
tion and bring it back to the House.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, perhaps Mr. Gilles-
pie could tell us if our liquor inspectors are included in
this Inspections Services. [ think, is there a reflection
there tor a couple of inspectors, or where are they co-
vered?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, one of these positions
was used on a part-time basis to provide for a liquor
inspector. Come April 1st, the liquor inspection service
will be taken over by the Liquor (.. »nration.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. [n the pre-
vious question, there was, it was asked Mr. Gillespie
about providing information as to the periods of time
he's spent in Clinton Creek. 1 would like to ask Mr.
Chliespieif he could expand on that and include all time
inench mine site, over a calendar year. I know for a fact
we've only had two inspections at Faro.

My next question is considering that the Mines In-
spector 1s a federally employed employee, working
under direction of the Government of the Yukon, I'm
curions it we are to look at inspectors and the Inspec-
tions Branch, why we don't have our own Mines Inspec-
tor. or a Mines Safety Officer for inspecting mines? 1
was curious about this. Why do we have to employ the
federal government person to do territorial work?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the reason that we
have continued to use a federal civil servant to do this on
our behalf is that there is expertise backing up that
federal civil servant in Ottawa, in the Department of
Indian and Northern Affairs, and also in Energy, Mines
and Resources. If we were to take over that responsibil-
ity and carry it totally ourselves, we would have to build
up quite a bureaucracy in order to arrive at the same
level of expertise to back up this inspector and this the
reason, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: 1 disagree with that explanation, Mr.
Chairman. Tt can’t be any worse than what we've al-
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ready got. as far as inspections. an Inspections Branch.

I don’t live in a world of bureaucracy, mine’s a little
casier 1o live with.

No, I'm curious why this has never been im-
plemented, when we have legislation on the books. We
have liquor legislation. with our own liquor inspectors:
we have electrical legislation with our own electrical
inspectors and I could go on to a few more pieces of
legislation.

I am at a loss. mind you, that’s why there is a continu-
ous breakdown with the mine safety legislation, be-
cause we don't have the right people doing the right job,
and that is inspecting the mines properly. When you
have these so-called expertise, Mr. Chairman, like Mr.
Gillespie aptly pointed out from the federal govern-
ment, they have no more expertise than we have.

That’s probably why all the provincial governments
have their own Inspections Branch, for their own par-
ticular areas like mining, logging, ete. so I cannot ac-
cept, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gillespie's explanation why
we don’t have our own Inspections Branch, because we
fefinitely would need it, being the first industry in the
Yukon.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, now that the topic is
brought up, maybe it isn’t that relevant, but possibly it
is, under the mine safety regulations, there's a fund
established, where industry pays into the fund for mine
safety, I believe, and it's our legislation, and yet they
pay into not our fund, not the Territorial Government
consolidated revenue, they pay the money to Canada.

To me, this has always been just, almost a ridiculous
situation, and I wonder whether the witness or anyone in
the room could give us the reason for that. I'll find the
section.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, if Mrs. Watson could
find the section, it would help me out because I'm not
familiar with what she’s talking — what fund is this?

The Workmen’s Compensation Fund?

Mrs. Watson: No, mining safety, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: While you are looking for that, Mr.
Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I wondered in the
meantime if the Member from Kluane finds the particu-
lar section, I wonder if the witness could tell us if the
mining industry in the Yukon does recognize the Yukon
mining safety legislation, or do they work under some
federal government legislation?

Mr. Gillespie: The legislation that applies, Mr.
Chairman, is the Mining Safety Ordinance of the Yukon,
and this is what they operate under.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any debate on Establish-
ment 400 while we're waiting for the --
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the Section is 36,



sub (3) and (4), (5, (3), (4) and (5), the mine rescue
teams, where the assessment is made against each of
the mines, and the monies paid, collected or received in
accordance with this section shall be paid to the Re-
ceiver General of Canada, and shall be deemed not to be
public money as defined in Section 2 of the Financial
Administration Ordinance.

You know, it seems awfully, it seems ludicrous for us
to have a piece of legislation where the money is being
paid into the Receiver General of Canada, instead of
into Yukon Consolidated Revenue Fund.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, this is an area that I
must admit I'm not familiar with, except that the mine
rescue training and promotion function is carried out by
the federal government.

Now, I would have to examine the Ordinance to see
whether it's a delegated function such as the mining
inspection function is, from the territorial government,
or whether it is, indeed, a direct federal responsibility.

I don't know the answer to that question. I only know
that the function is carried out by the federal govern-
ment, and therefore, the funds that go toward that,
should also be paid to the federal government, by one
means or another.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, another very, very in-
teresting thing that I've always, and I've meant to ask it
now that we're at it, Section number 3,

“The Commissioner may appoint duly qualified per-
sons as inspectors, or authorize other duly qualified
persons to act as such for the purposes of this Ordi-
nance,”

and ['ve never been able to find a Commissioner’s
Order which an appointed — which appointed a qual-
ified person as an inspector.

Then it says.

“Designate an inspector to be chief inspector or dis-
trict inspector.”

I've never been able to find the Commissioner's Order
which did this, and then I've never been able to find — it
may be under other legislation, ‘*Appoint a duly regis-
tered person as Registrar of Mines, medical certificate,
for the purposes of this Ordinance.” Again --

Mr. Gillespie: In that latter case, I believe that the
Chief Medical Officer for the Yukon fulfills that func-
tion.

Mrs. Watson: But is he appointed to fulfill that fune-
tion?

Mr. Gillespie: 1 believe he is, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Is there a regulaticn -

Mrs. Watson: A Commissioner’s Order, right, and
I've never been able to tind where the authority to carry
out the function of the Mine Safety Ordinance has ever
been delegated by the Commissioner of the Yukon Ter-
ritory, to the people who were carrying it out, and I think
you'll find that there never has.
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Mr. Gillespie: Inthat case, I'm glad to be apprised
of that now, Mr. Chairman. I will attempt to find out,
and if there aren’t, I'm sure that they are duly ap-
pointed, post haste.

Mrs. Watson: Tomorrow.
Mr. Gillespie: Post haste.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, just for the record, the
Chief Medical Officer of the Yukon is another federal
government employee, is he not?

Mr. Gillespie: He’'s a territorial employee --
Mr. Chairman: No, I don’t believe so.

Mr. Gillespie:
rected.

Sorry, Mr. Chairman, I stand cor-

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Not yet.

Mr. Chairman:
on a lot of things.
Mr. McCall?

We're working on it. We're working

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to ask
Mr. Gillespie one last question and maybe in considera-
tion, another question. I'm just wondering, can we see
the day where we have our own Mines Inspectors here,
without relying on our mixed-up federal government to
enact and follow through regulations and ordinances
that we pass here in this House?

Canwe expect thisin the very near future, as aserious
consideration from Administration ins.ead of passing
the buck over to the federal government by hiring their
employees instead of our own?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I would not be pre-

pared, sitting here, to make a commitment as to just
when this would happen, without having had a chance to
examine the implications of doing that.
As I said before, we have no backup at all in that area,’
within the Territorial government, and it would be a
matter of determining just how much back up and of
what caliber we would require and so on and doing a
proper analysis before we made a decision as to just
when and indeed, whether, we would want to take over
that function within the Territorial Government.

Mr. Chairman: Perhaps, Mr. McCall, you would have
to await for the accruing of royalties to this government
before any action could be taken.

Mr. MeCall: Mr. Chairman, I was just thinking along
those same lines. We'll probably have to wait until the
federal government decides to give us our own respon-
sible reins on the resources in the Yukon, if there's any
left by that time.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr, Chairman, I certainly agree with
the Honourable Member from Pelly River, it's our legis-



lation and we are delegating, using federal government
employees to carry out our legislation and maybe it's
time we had some negotiations with the federal gov-
ernment whether we could perform this function ourse-
lves. Let them transfer the money they spend perform-
ing this function to the Yukon, and maybe we could do
just as adequate a job. I'm sure.

Mr. Gillespie: I agree, Mr. Chairman, it’s worth look-
ing into, beyond that I can’t make any commitments.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McIntyre.

Mr Mclntyre: Mr. Chairman, I might point out the
first Mines Safety Superintendent was a territorial gov-
ernment employee. The previous council decided this
wasn't something that the territorial government
should be messing about with. So, it’s this Chamber that
has turned it back.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the witness has said
something interesting that he has no backing in the
Territory. I don’t think an inspector needs anymore
backing than the legislation and we have the legislation,
that{is all the backing the inspector should have and
need.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Honour-
able Member from Mayo could tell us when the legisla-
tion, when the members of the Council turned this func-
tion back to the territorial government. Does he recall?

Mr. MecIntyre: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it was the Ter-
ritorial Council following the one that Mr. McKamey
was the member from Mayo, and Mr. McKamey was
very much instrumental in having this territorial re-
sponsibility and the succeeding council decided that
they didn’t want to be bothered with it and turned it back
to the federal government. So that would be, probably,
fifteen years ago.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, not to put any words in
the Honourable Member from Mayo's mouth, but
maybe it would be appropriate that the Honourable
Member from Mayo would now want to get this function
back into the hands of the territorial government, I
don’t know, --

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: It should always be remem-
bered that the federal government seemingly has no
problem at all in giving us administrative duties where
the cost is going to be 100 per cent borne by the territor-
ial administration and the territorial taxpayer, without
a corresponding turnover of the revenue generating
functions of Indian Affairs and Northern Development.

I think that probably we could get the Administrative
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control of the Mining Inspection Branch back to the
Government of the Yukon and I don’t know what kind of
a cost-sharing arrangement we could make with the
federal government, it would probably be 100 per cent
responsibility of the people of the Yukon and there
would be still no corresponding transfer of resource
revenue sharing with the transfer of administrative re-
sponsibility.

I would think the time would b2, if we got a commit-
ment on resource revenue sharing, that we would look
at it a lot more palatably at that period in time.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I differ with the Minister on that particu-
lar point, because I am not prepared to wait for the
Federal Government to hand over what's left, after
they've taken all the goodies, as far as resource revenue
sharing.

Wehave alot of people’s lives involved in mine safety,
and I want to see it now, and I don’t care what it costs,
because that is a necessary function in this day of life, to
have a proper inspector that can lower the boom on
people that are committing unsafe conditions in a min-
ing industry, where we have in the 20th Century right
ilow in the Yukon.

I am not inierested in waiting for the government of
tne day to hand over the resources, if, like I say, there’s
any left. What I am concerned about is proper inspec-
tion in the mines that we have today that are operating,
sending that same amount of money to Ottawa, which
we get back as a so-called budget, which is only spend-
ing money in some people’s eyes.

What I'm concerned about is proper Inspections
Branch which we should have in the Yukon right now,
operated, and not using federal employees.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. 1
think the Honourable Member misunderstood me. I said
when resource revenue sharing, which I thought was
imminent in this government became a reality, not
when resources were turned over to the Government of
Yukon.

Mr. Chairman: I don’t know whether it’s appropriate
for me to ask this question, but I do recall an instance
where there was an unfortunate accident in a mine close
to Whitehorse, in which there was a mortality, and the
functions of examining the circumstances related
strictly to the court, a Coroner’s Court.

What would be the role of a mining inspector, and
what control would the Territorial Government in that
situation have? Because to my knowledge, there was no
involvement of a mining inspector in the investigations
that were going on at that time.

Mr. Gillespie: I couldn’t provide -- Mr. Chairman, I
couldn’t provide you with a complete answer of just
where he fitted in and when inspections or what follow-
up work he did as a result of that, but I do know he was
involved in some capacity, but beyond that, the details,
I don’t recall.

Mr. McCall: Mr, Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?



Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I'm not sure of the
reason that the over-estimate was made, whether it was
the fact that there are fewer licences than anticipated or
what, but the fact of the matter is that there was an
over-estimate last year.

Mrs. Watson: Yes.
Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

M,s. Millard: Mr. Chairman, the same thing applies
to motor vehicle licences.

Mr. Gillespie: That’s correct, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: We’ll stand further consideration of
Vote ...
Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Just in the motor vehicle licences, I
was wondering if there is ever any consideration given
to licensing on the wheel base of vehicles, as it is now, to
licence the cubi¢ displacement of an engine like it’s
done in a lot of other countries in the world, and espe-
cially today with the energy shortage, and so I think it
would be a time to look at the possible ways of conserv-
ing energy.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the Land Titles, three
and a half man years, $63,000.00, and we don’t show any
recoveries for Land Titles, and I thought that was going
to be a hundred per cent recoverable.

Mr. Gillespie: It will be, Mr. Chairman, when we
have our own Land Titles Ordinance, but until such time
as the Federal Land Titles Act is amended and we have
our own Land Titles Ordinance, the recoveries I'm af-
raid go directly to the Federal Government.

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman; with re-
spect to what Mr. Berger has just stated, I find it very
interesting and I'd like him to explain to this Committee
just what he’s referring to that we all go out and purch-
ase sub-compact cabs or what. I mean, I’d be interested
in an explanation from Mr. Berger.

Mr. Chairman: You're exposing yourself, Mr.
McCall.

Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: With pleasure, with great pleasure,
Mr. Chairman, I'd gladly explain what I have in mind.
In most other countries in the world the taxation on the
motor vehicle licensing is done on the displacement of
the engine; the simple reason is to conserve energy,
gasoline. Now, Mr. McCall, in his particular case, is
driving alarge car; he would have to pay alarge licence
fee for his vehicle. In my particular case, I'm driving a
small car and paying lesser fees.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, it’s one way of getting,
you know, of getting your point across as to being jeal-
ous, that’s all.
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: I would like to get the answer from
administration if it was even considered, and even a
thought given to this particular line, and I'm not joking
about this thing.

Mr. Gillespie: It's something that we can look at,
Mr. Chairman. I believe we do it on the basis of weight of
vehicles and presumably cars that weigh more con-
sume more, like people, Mr. Chairman. Or the same
thing if it’s wheel base, I stand corrected it’s wheel base,
but then it’s certainly something that we can look into.

Mr. Chairman: Perhaps when you get the com-
ments on the way in, you could piggyback on the back of
Mr. McCall’s car.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, with respect, he doesn’t
drive fast enough.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: If I may just mention that I will
be bringing to the attention of the Executive Committee
Member responsible for this Department, communica-
tion from the Yukon Medical Association, which I have
received this week, regarding the doubling of the regist-
ration licence fees applying to members of their profes-
sion in this current year.

It now costs $600.00 to begin practice in the Yukon, if
you come in from another jurisdiction, $400.00 plus the
200 annual registration fee, licence fee, and the profes-
sion has made it clear in their communications to me
that this is nearly double, for example, what British
Columbia charges, but that is not the main point of their
submission.

The point is that the money they pay in other jurisdic-
tions for such registration goes into a fund which applies
to their profession in many ways, and here they do not
receive any services for that registration with our gov-
ernment. They do receive considerable amount of ser-
vice from other governments or, when they register
with the B.C. College of Physicians and Surgeons, there
are services rendered to them for that registration.

It’s part, I think, of the growing pains of this country
that we’re not quite large enough yet to have a profes-
sional college in which they would register to practice
here. On the other hand, the government is taking that
money and there is a submission before us at this time
that they would like us to consider, and I will be bringing
it to the attention of the Member responsible.

Mr. Chairman: Isthereany further considerationat
this time of Vote 4?7 There is no capital.

We will then carry on with Vote 5. Mr. Gillespie, you
are excused, thank you very much.

Establishment 500, Disease Control, $114,700.00.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, earlier in this

Session, I handed out some information regarding the
number of new contacts and patients under these head-



Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Is then the Safety Inspector, Mr. Chair-
man, going to enforce Workmen’s Compensation legis-
lation in the mining industry from now on? Since he’s
established now?

Mr. Gillespie: He could, Mr. Chairman, under the
Workmen'’s Compensation Ordinance. And, a case has
not arisen since we’ve had him in our employment,
since we’ve had this individual in our employment, so
it’s a little difficult to determine just how he would
handle this, but if there’s a mining inspector, we would
rely primarily on him, but there would be nothing to
prevent, under the Workmen’s Compensation Ordi-
nance, the Safety Inspector also inspecting the mines.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, again, I find it quite curi-
ous, I mean the Safety Inspector is obviously more con-
cerned with Workmen’s Compensation Ordinances we
have in the books. It should be up to him to enforce
Workmen'’s Compensation legislation, and not the Min-
ing Inspector, who absolutely knows nothing about
Workmen’s Compensation Boards.

Mr. Gillespie: They are both concerned with safety,
that’s our concern.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to
reiterate what Mr. Berger has just said. I would like to
know if the Safety Inspector for Compensation is going
to spend some time in the mining industry, other than
the federally employed Mines Safety Officer. And I'm
curious, are we going to get this commitment? We have
the Ordinance in the books, it is our own Ordinance, our
own legislation, our own inspector. He would probably
do a far better job and not play around with a game with
people. I'd like to get this commitment, if I may.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the safety Inspector
will spend his time where he is most urgently needed.
And at this point in time, it’s our view that he’s most
urgently needed outside of the mining industry, where
there’s at least one person that is doing inspections
there. You can see examples around this city of con-
struction projects. Over the last couple of years, where
the lack of safety precautions is just evident to any
layman.

Just today, Mr. Chairman, I watched a part of a build-
ing being moved up onto a truck by a crane. And the man
that was standing underneath this part of a building,
which is almost as big as that scene behind you, wore no
safety helmet. And I’'m sure, Mr. Chairman, that is the
Safety Inspector had been able to get around to that
project, he would very quickly have dealt with that kind
of situation which we see all around us which has been
ignored, all these years, up until now.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: So, in essence, what you're saying, Mr.
Gillespie, with all due respect, is we're going to have
probably a type of inspections where the man is so over-
burdened he wouldn’t be able to do a proper job even if
he tried, because you're going to burden him down with
too much work and want to have assistance to do a
proper job, under the Compensation Ordinance.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we
could be told whether or not the man year has been filled
for the Worker’s Compensation Board Inspector, that
we were assured would be added to this year’s comple-
ment.

It was my understanding a year ago that there was
going to be such an inspector, who would deal with
W.C.B. inspections.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry if I didn't
make this clear earlier, but that is the safety inspector
I'm talking about.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: No, Mr. Chairman, not my un-
derstanding.

Mr. Gillespie: We have only one safety inspector
and he is under the Inspection Service and most of his
duties are directed at serving Workmen’s Compensa-
tion and the majority of his salary is recoverable from
the Workmen’s Compensation Fund for that reason.

Mr. Chairman: Which really leads into another
problem that I find in the budget, Mr. Gillespie. Where
is the Establishment for the Workmen's Compensation
Board?

Mr. Gillespie: There is no Establishment under the
Territorial Secretary, Mr. Chairman, because there are
no expenditures. It’s a revolving fund, which is fully
sustained by contributions from the industry and the
individuals themselves.

Mr. Chairman: Therefore, there shouldn’t be any
health care insurance plan in the budget either. That’s
quite inconsistent.

There is many things I would like to talk about on the
Compensation Board I have no opportunity to here, but
so many other things, like the health care insurance
plan, are revolving funds on the same basis. What’s the
difference?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, there is an An-
nual Report tabled by that body, and certainly it’s
within the realms of this Vote to discuss that report, is it
not?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: It’s all right, Mr. Chairman.



Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I referred to that the
other day, and we would have to get our information
from the report. Unfortunately, I left my working pap-
ers at home; I can bring them for tomorrow, or for any
other day, but that is where we would get our time in this
Vote, 1 think, for Workmen’s Compensation.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like to go
back to that safety inspector again, because I have to
agree with the Honourable Member from Pelly — obvi-
ously this man is overworked and he has too many
duties to fulfill.

But I would also like to get figures to sustain our
arguments here, is, how many people are in the labour
force in the Yukon, and I would like to see that figure
split: how many people are working in the mining indus-
try, how many people are working in other industrial
areas in the Yukon?

I would also like to know the figures on how many
accidents occurred under the Workmen’s Compensa-
tion Board in the mining industry, and the other indus-
trial areas, and then I think I would like to be prepared
to argue a little more about this.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, perhaps one of the
Honourable Members, certainly I would bring forward
for debate in the House, some kind of a recommendation
that the Yukon Government investigate the feasibility
of fully administering the Mine Safety Ordinance, pro-
viding, of course, that we can maintain the present fi-
nancial agreement with the Federal Government.

But that would bring an opportunity to call for a lot
more detail, and it’s a very vital and important ques-
tion, and I think that maybe that’s the place where we
should try and get this question answered, and I would
certainly be prepared to bring something forward, with
the consent of another Member.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I think, Mr. Chairman, before we go
into that avenue of approach, I think it would be wise for
the witness, Mr. Gillespie, to get the material together
which has already been requested, and when we go into
further discussion before we take that avenue of ap-
proach, although I appreciate my colleague to my left’s
suggestion, I think it’s a good idea, but I want Mr. Gil-
lespie to put his thinking cap on, if I may, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Order, please.

Mr. McCall: I'm sorry.

Mr. Chairman: I will declare a brief recess.
(Recess)

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order.

Mr. Gillespie, during the recess I had the opportunity
tolook at the Annual Report of the Workmen’s Compen-
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sation with regard to the mentioned report. This report
that has been tabled in this House on November the 9th,
1976, thereport is for the year ended December 31, 1975.

The auditor’s report that covers it, I think refers to
about March of last year; I would submit, Mr. Gillespie,
that a report that is well over a year old now is not very
valuable for our consideration at the present time, and
this is a budget that involves some $3,000,000.00, and I do
think it would be worthy of more consideration for
Committee if we could have it in the budget in more than
just one single line item the way it is now.

Mr. Gillespie: I'm just wondering what is the best
way to handle this. It's not — monies that are paid into
the Workmen’s Compensation Fund do not go through
the Consolidated Revenue Fund, nor are they paid out of
the Consolidated Revenue Fund. It’s a separate ac-
count.

On the other hand, they are monies, trust monies of
the public, so I do accept Mr. Chairman’s point that they
deserve public scrutiny. I'm just not quite sure how this
should be done, whether it should be done by way of
examining or at least tabling their budget, or for each
year at this point in time, so that the public can have
access and see how they are spending it, or whether
some other means — this is not something that has ever
been looked at or done in the past, so I must admit that I
have not given any consideration for this session, but
it's something that we can consider for the future.

Mr. Chairman: That would be worthy of considera-
tion. Thank you, Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I wonder what the witness, Mr. Gilles-
pie, is referring to, the future. We're concerned right
now, and I'm just wondering if it is at all possible, Mr.
Chairman, to get this particular matter in a position
where it can be presented to this Committee while we're
in the budget estimates at this point in time.

I don’t think it’s going to be that difficult. I'm just
wondering if that could be ...

Mr. Gillespie: I don’t see any reason why not.

Mr. Chairman: If Committee agrees, we'll stand
over further consideration of this Establishment until
that information is available.

Some Members: Agreed.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, one brief question on
the recoveries; are you going to do the capital for the
secretary too? And a question on the recoveries on Page
76, Business and Professional Licences, and it's down
quite a great deal from what was estimated last year, I
noted in the supplementaries and again now. Is it be-
cause, and we did increase in 1976, '75-76, the licence
fees, and yet was it just a matter of over-estimating, or
is there just not that many licences being taken out?



Mr. McCall: I believe, if my information was correct,
I believe the Coroner of the day asked for a report from
the Mines Inspector as to the operation of the day, but
that was never made public, because there was a
number of witnesses asked to be allowed to present their
case at the coroner’s inquest at the time, and most of the
employees working at that particular operation where
the fatality occurred, and there was a mish-mash
shambles, that none of them was allowed to give evi-
dence that would jeopardize the operation at that time,
because there was some interesting facts came to light
and they were never publicly disclosed.

They were all kept under wraps, and nobody, accord-
ing to the Coroner’s Ordinance, Mr. Chairman, need to
give--areforced by law, or whatever, to give this type of
information which would maybe assist future circums-
tances that may arise where there’s a fatality involved,
and that particular incident was quite a topic for discus-
sion publicly, if I recall.

It was up to the coroner to decide just what way he
wants to go as to this particular investigation, and all
they asked for at that time was a Mine Inspector’s re-
port which he usually puts on half a page and that’s
about it, and this is what T’ve always been concerned
with, and this is, Mr. Chairman, I think what you were
referring to.

He didn’t have to make any report whatsoever under
the Coroner’s Ordinance.

Mr. Chairman: I might also ask, if it does come under
the same Department, what would the role of the Com-
pensation Board be in inspecting such an accident?

Mr. Gillespie: If there were an injury, a fatality is a
fatality, but if there is an injury, Mr. Chairman, the
Board can determine itself, as I understand it, what
compensation should be paid.

If there is disagreement, the matter is then referred
to the referee of the Workmen’s Compensation Board,
whchl then determines what compensation should be
paid.

Are you referring to an injury, or are you referring to
a death?

Mr. Chairman: I'm referring to the responsibility of
the Compensation Board with regard to an accident,
whether a fatality or not. Their responsibility as to the
correction of the circumstances that led to the accident.

Mr. Gillespie: The safety inspector that we now have
on staff, and have only had on staff a short time, is
employed under the Territorial Secretary’s Office, but
the majority of his duties relate to the Workmen’s Com-
pensation Board function to ensure that safe practices
are carried out throughout the Territory.

It’s a preventive function, rather than an after the
fact function, under the Workmen’s Compensation Or-
dinance, and certainly if there is an accident, the safety
inspector would -- is expected to review the circums-
tances, and to take whatever action is required to en-
sure that whatever might have caused the accident is
corrected for the future.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I find that quite

Page 278

interesting, but I sort of got lost, because I feel that the
safety inspector, as I understand it, is sort of overlap-
ping the mining inspector, is that true?

Mr. Gillespie: That’s a good point, Mr. Chairman.
There are two ordinances and the Safety Inspector,
under the Workmen’s Compensation Ordinance, directs
his attention almost entirely to matters outside of
mines, whereas the Mining Inspector restricts his at-
tention to mines themselves.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, yes, if that’s the case,
what function has the Safety Inspector applying the
Workmen’s Compensation Board to the mines them-
selves?

Mr. Gillespie: I'm sorry, could you repeat that ques-
tion?

Mr. Berger: That the Safety Inspector has any power
at all in the mining industry in applying the Workmen’s
Compensation Ordinance?

Mr. Gillespie: Under the Workmen's Compensation
Ordinance, there is no definition of what industry
means, therefore, the Workmen’s Compensation Ordi-
nance and the Safety Provisions contained in it apply
also to mining, as the Ordinance is written af this mo-
ment.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Is the Safety Inspector then enforcing
Workmen's Compensation Ordinances in the mining in-
dustry at the present time?

Mr. Gillespie: Not at this point in time, Mr. Chair-
man.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Why not, then? Industry is industry in the
sense that the witness said. It’s not defined. Why isn’t
the safety Inspector enforcing Workmen’s Compensa-
tion in the mining industry?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the reason that he
hasn’t been spending, has not been spending time in the
mining industry up until this time is that we’ve only had
a safety inspector for a very short period of time. We've
had a mining inspector for a long period of time and
there have been on-going inspections in mines. The area
that is, where safety inspections have been most defi-
cient have been outside of mines and so, up to this point
in time, our safety inspector has been instructed to
spend his time on construction projects and such other
things that have not been given proper attention in the
past. It's a matter of priorities and the amount of time
available for the individual.



1ngs.
% would like to tell the House also that part of the
additional cost here under Disease Control, which of
course is administered by the Federal Public Health
staff, these are the costs we pay toward that service.

Part of the increase will be because there are now two
people in full-time V.D. control, man years, one is a
program director and one is the public health nurse
assigned to that specific area, and there will be a step-
up of educational programming at the territorial level
on this subject this year.

You will also see increases in costs for tuberculosis,
and I am sorry to have to report to this House that there
were a number of new cases located in the last, or in this
current, year which had to be hospitalized, T.B. cases
from the Yukon, which is a reminder to all of us that this
is not a thing of the past. It is still very much a threat,
and no-one should be complacent about whether or not
they are protected from T.B.

Cancer, on the other hand, we are a little happier to
say, is relatively stable. According to our statistics in
the Yukon, there has been no great increase in the
number of cancer cases coming before our physicians.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard.

_Ms. Millard: Just a matter of procedure, I'm mis-
sing Page 79 and 80, I'm wondering if anyone else is?

Mr.McCall: Youknow,on the very interesting point
that the Minister brought up, Mr. Chairman, I was just
wondering if the Minister could advise us as to the area
which T.B. is originated from within the Yukon.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: No, Mr. Chairman, I don't have
names and home addresses of patients. I do not see a
listing, but if the Chairman would wish to assist us in his
professional capacity?

Mr. Chairman: It mightbe of some assistance tothe
member. Most of these cases are referred to the
Whitehorse Hospital and the diagnosis takes place at
grl']ii centre, no matter where they come from in the

ukon.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, why I'm curious about,
I don’t want to get too specific, but what I'm concerned
about is the actual region or location as to the cases and
where they’re actually coming from.

Mr. Chairman: I would also submit that the number
of cases that are involved would not make the statistic
significant as to the areas involvement.

Mr. McCall: Well, Mr. Chairman, with all due re-
spect, you didn’t answer my question. My question is,
just what locations are they coming from? I don't,
whether it’s two, three, 5,0007

Mr. Chairman:
Mr. McCall: Well, Mr. Chairman, with all due re-

spect, I wonder if the Minister could find out this infor-
mation. I would be curious as to where the cases are

I don’t know, Mr. McCall.
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coming from. Not individuals in question, names or ad-
dresses, I'm just curious as to what area, that’s all.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I will try to get
that information for you.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the Minister was
telling us there’s two people working on V.D. control. I
was wondering, there’s nothing shown in the budget on
man years. Are they going to come from another de-
partment, or what?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Theman years are not shownon
our side because they are federal employees, Mr.
Chairman. These are in the public health division of the
Northernregion, the Yukon Region, and 1 hope I am not
giving the impression that only two public health people
are working in this particular area. All public health
nurses do and a great many other people but these two
have the specific assignment for VD control at the ter-
ritorial level and they provide the material and backup
and assistance to the others in each of the regional
centres, community centres.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I'm wondering if our
Minister could give us a rundown on the abortive swine
fluprograminthe Yukon. Isit stillon? What happened?

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard? Mr. Chairman, there’s nothing
to report.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I did see some adver-
tising at one point, and I thought that the program was
still available for older people or something, so there
must be something to report.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I haven’t heard
anything new since the program was offered to the pub-
lic, and the disappointing turnout, I think, indicated a
lack of interest generally.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Well, Mr. Chairman, if we could have
some details. How much money was set aside for this
program, how much was spent? Is the program still
going to continue? Are we in hopes of having a few
people show up? Is the program finished, et cetera?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I can direct
these questions to the people responsible. I cannof
guarantee I will have answers here this week.

Mr. Chairman: Are these funds that are listed here
direct expenditures against the Territorial - against the
Territory, Mrs. Whyard?



Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, these are funds
spent by this government, as their share of the costs in
these programs.

Mr. Chairman: That therefore would not include
Indian involvement?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I would assume
that we would be billed, as we usually are, for all
Yukoners, and we would then recover any costs for
Status people from the Department responsible.

Mr. Chairman: Yes, I agree, but would they be in-
cluded in these figures? The reason is obvious. What
you've been asked to bring forward statistics on various
matters, but if this funding only refers to one segment of
the population, whatever information you bring for-
ward is not going to be particularly valid, i.e. T.B.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I think thisisthe
total funding.

Mr. Chairman: Well surely, the Territorial Gov-
ernment is not responsible for the funding of the health
of the natives in the Territory?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, that is what 1
just tried to explain. The normal process, and I would
like assistance on this if I'm wrong, the normal process
is we pay the bill and we recover the costs for the native
people, who may have been part of that program.

Mr. Chairman: That’s what I asked.
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: That’s what I thought I said.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, once again this isn’t
always straight forward. In Establishments 500 and 502,
Health and Welfare Canada incurs the entire cost, and
then they bill the Territory for approximately 70 per
centof it, the 70 per cent, I think, is derived upon popula-
tion figures, but with respect to Medicare costs and
hospitalization costs, then we do, in fact, bear the entire
cost of the program, and recover back the native portion
from Health and Welfare.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: So we do it both ways.

Mr. Chairman: Plus a third way because there’s
also recovery of funds from your hospitalization plans
as well, and with cost sharing programs.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I'msorry, that’s what
I was referring to, the recovery - we make the total
expenditure and recover money back.

Now, the way we get the recovery depends upon who
we're recovering for. In the case of hospitalization, and
in the case of Medicare, well both of them are different.
In the case of hospitalization, we get back money from
the Department of Health and Welfare, under the stan-
dard cost sharing program, which is in place for all
provinces, and which is in the process of changing.

We then recover an additional amount on top of that,
based upon the percentage of the patients which were
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native, and the recovery is made from the Department
of Indian Affairs.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Clear?

Mr. Chairman: No, it’s not clear, it's all... What
happens, for instance, to the bad debts that federal gov-
ernment refuses to pay for under the Plan?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, what bad debts are
you referring to?

Mr. Chairman: For instance, the Health Hospitali-
zation Plan? There is a system whereby the federal
government refuses to pay if they do not consider hos-
pitalization justified, either here or out of the Territory.
Where are those funds coming from?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, you're saying - I'm
sorry, I don’t completely understand the question. You
mean, a service for a charge for medical service which
is found to be - -

Mr. Chairman: A charge for a hospital service, in
this instance, which is not deemed to be valid by the
federal authorities.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, if
YTG made the expense in the first place, then the ex-
pense would get charged to our hospitalization estab-
lishment, which is either 515 to 525, I can’t recall. Then,
if it was later found, discovered that we shouldn’t have
made that expense, we would try and recover the
amount from the individual or absorb it ourself. I'm
sorry, with respect to that kind of expense, I don’t know
what the policy is.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Ibelieve you're referring to the
function of the Medical Referee, who -

Mr. Chairman: Yes.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: - rules on whether or not hos-
pitalization should have been extended to that person
for that period of time and various services given.

On a medical diagnostic background, not on the dol-
lars and cents, but from a medical and professional
assessement of that individual patient, that’s what the
medical referee is there for, to insure that the hospitali-
zation that is paid for was required medically. That’s
oversimplification, but that’s the Referee you're refer-
ring to, I believe, Mr. Chairman.

It’s my understanding that if the claim is rejected, the
patient is then responsible for the amount that is not
paid by us. You get into some very complex situations
and it’s very difficult to determine fault as Mr. Chair-
man well knows, because there’s always conflicts of
opinion among various medical people regarding
whether or not the patient did need that service or that
hospital care at that time, for those many days, and it’s
an on-going thing continually. I am afraid the answer,
Mr. Chairman, is that the patient is stuck with the bill, if
it has not been approved.

Mr. Chairman: Which brings up a very difficult
point, because the patient is not really responsible, as a



rule, for them being in hospital and then they are stuck
for the bill. But this is a situation which is unique to the
Yukon Territory. I have worked in other provinces and I
have never seen this system elsewhere, where there has

ll:gltlen a Board of Referees that refuses to pay a hospital
ill.

Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm quite in-
terested in the referee. How many cases have been re-
ferred to the Referee in the last year?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, all cases are re-
ferred, they are all scrutinized on the same standards
for acceptability, prior to payment being made.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: [ worded my question wrongly. How
many cases came out of the referee — I realize they all
go to the referee, how many cases have been referred
back to the patients in this responsibility.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I don’t know, 1
would have to go and ask. I don’t think the percentage is
that large, but to the person involved, it’s a very impor-
tant percentage, and in each case, we do our very best to
assist in working out the problem, and in some cases,
it's simply a matter of lack of communication between
the doctor who referred the patient and the hospital to
which the patient was referred, and /or the medical
referee.

AndI'mhappy to be able to say that in some cases we
are able to break through that communication wall, and
with aletter saying this doctor said I was supposed to be
there, and I had to be there because, and then this addi-
tional information can be provided by the hospital to the
referee, and it does, frequently, get resolved to the be-
nefit of the patient.

There’s a great deal of paper work involved in all
these matters.

Mr. Chairman: There is an automatic appeal sys-
tem, Mr. Berger. If the referee refuses the account, it
automatically goes back to the doctor responsible, and
he then puts forth an explanation, it's an automatic
procedure, and a lot of them are stopped at that point,
and never go any further.

The problem ones are the ones that Mrs. Whyard is
referring to, where it’s still not accepted.

But the point still remains that there is a very major
burden on several individuals in the Territory because
of this. It’s not a small problem, by any means.

Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, wasn't part of the
problem, or isn’t part of the problem, in the past it was,
certainly, because certain doctors just didn’t seem to

, take the time to substantiate the reason for the patient
being hospitalized for a certain number of days, and I
think it took a great deal of sort of doctors disciplining
themselves to do the necessary documentation.

As Mr. Chairman said, there is a great deal of paper
work involved, and if it wasn’t done, it was just thrown
out, and consequently, though, in the past people were
billed specifically for this, and I think that it’s certainly
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not as bad as it used to be.

But I have another question on 500, on V.D. control,
and to me it doesn't appear as though that is 70 per cent
of the amount that is spent on V.D. control in the Yukon.

1 think the Treasurer was saying that doesn’t repres-
ent the total amount of money that was spent. We were
charged back our certain portion, and just by the fact
that the Minister of Health stated that there were two
people now in full time employment in the V.D. control
branch, and yet our proportion of it is only 11,000.

I have a further question, which I'd like an answer to,
and the Minister of Health was speaking about the edu-
cation program that you're embarking upon to assist in
the control of V.D., and I'm wondering whether this
education program is being carried on in the schools,
particularly at the secondary and possibly even junior
secondary level?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I don't know. In
conversation with the Regional Director of Northern
Health Services the other day, when [ was trying to get
all the necessary background for this Vote, I also
learned that there is to be, in this coming year in the
region, a health education specialist for the federal
program.

I was unable really, to pin down exactly what his
duties will be, except that he will provide, he or she, will
provide material to the public health nurses, to use in
their educational program, so I can't answer the Hon-
ourable Member. I'll try to find out again.

Mr. Chairman: That item was in their budget be-
fore, il just never came about when they had their cut-
back, this education specialist, whoever he was to be.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: No, Mr. Chairman, there was an
education officer here, and last year the position was
vacated and left empty until this current program be-
gins again, but I understand there will be someone ar-
riving in the beginning of the new year.

Mr. Chairman: Do youhavetherestof the question?

Mrs. Watson: Well, to pursue this, isn’t this the one
area where this program should be carried out in the
schools, and has there been any opposition to this from
the schools, and you were talking about the other prog-
ram, the Family Life Education, or what was it? Would
these tie in together, Mr. Chairman?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, [ would cer-
tainly think so. I cannot answer for the positions in the
schools at this time. I can only say that not only are the
schools a desirable target area, but all construction
camps are.

Honourable Members will know, from looking at fig-
ures in past years, that whenever there is a major con-
struction project in the neighbourhood of any commun-
ity, the raterises rapidly. During the construction of the
Aishihik dam, we broke all records here in Whitehorse
for V.D. control and V.D. cases, and it's tapered off
again, and I'm sure wherever there is a large project
like that bringing in transient labour, that’s the target.

But there should also, of course, be an ongoing prog-
ram in all the schools at a very, at an elementary school
level. Now that’s very important.



Mr. Chairman: Mr. FFleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I almost forget
my question now. It was to do with the board, or what-
ever, that decides that they should maybe have to pay
for his bill. Is this — are you speaking of native and
non-native peoples both, or just one denomination?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, this referee’s
opinicn would be based on medical reasons only, and it
would have nothing to do with the colour of anybody's
skin.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, but if the medical re-
feree rejected the patient’s stay in the hospital and the
patient was a Status Indian, would not the bill be sent to
Indian Affairs?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, the bill would be
sent there in any case. Mr. Chairman, in effect, the bill
would be recovered by this government from Indian
Affairs, but they would be paying it.

Mrs. Watson: It wouldn't be Indian Affairs,
wouldn't it be Health, through National Health?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: The Department of Indian Af-
fairs pays for the health costs of the Status Indians in the
Yukon.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: No, it's fine, Mr. Chairman.
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, prior to adjourning
for the day, I would like to inform Members that I have
given all Members a White Paper on the concept of the
Yukon Teacher Education Program and I would like all
Members to take the opportunity this evening to read it,
so that possibly we could discuss it first thing in the
morning, because we do have an offer from a Doctor
Dave Thomas, Director of Field Development, Faculty
of Education of the University of British Columbia, who
would be prepared to come before this House as a wit-
ness if Members have any questions. And he's available
until March 18th and he will be gone from March 18th til
the 25th or maybe even longer.

So I think Members should take the opportunity to
read it and if they don’t require his presence, that’s fine,
but I think that we should discuss it and see whether or
not they want that expertise as witness.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would
move that Mr. Speaker do now resume the Chair.

Mr. Chairman: It's been moved by Mr. McCall, sec-
onded by Mr. Fleming, that Mr. Speaker do now resume
the Chair.
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Are you ready for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: The motion is carried.

(Motion carried) '

Mr. Chairman: The witnesses are excused.
(Mr. Speaker resumes Chair)

Mr. Speaker: [ will now call the House to order.

May we have a report from the Chairman of Commit-
tees?

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, the Committee of the
Whole considered Bill Number 2, Second Appropriation
Ordinance, 1977-78, and directed me to report progress
on same.

The Committee have also directed me to ask leave to
sit again.

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the report of the
Chairman of Committees. Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: Leave is so granted.

May I have your further pleasure? The Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I move that we do now
call it 5:00 o’clcock.

Ms. Millard: I second that, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the
Honourable Member from Ogilvie, that we do now call it
5:00 o’clock.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried.
(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: This House stands adjourned until
10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.

(Adjourned )



LEGISLATIVE RETURN &

1977 (First) Session

Mr. Speaker
Members of the Assembly

On March 2, 1977, Mr. J. Hibberd asked the following question:

Would the Minister supply this Assembly with information regarding the programs
of the Detox Cantre and Crossroads? Is there an updated evaluation of their
respective programs?

The_answer to the question above fs as follows:
Crossroads:

April 1, 1976 to March 1, 1977

Admissions: Referral Origin:
First agmissions: 129 Whitehorse
Repeat admissions: 3 Yukon: outside 74

TOTAL 164 whitehorse

Ethnic Origin:
liative Origin 82
Non-Native 82

Total occupancy days - 5,478. Average of 16 residents per day @642 occupancy rate.*
+The budget was estimated based on a 70% occupancy rate.

Recearch Statistics: ]

Crossroads 15 now involved in the initia) phase of Evaluative-Program Development
Research Project.

Total Number of residents in 1976 - 75. In 1975 - 5B.

In 1576 In_1975
54 men 50 men
22 men native 16 men native
21 women 8 women
17 women native 5 women native
39 native persons 21 native persons
36 non-native 37 non-nat ive

30 residents completed program

44 residents completed program
28 did not complete program

1 residents did not complete program

EVALUATION:
1. The number of native people referred to “Crossroads” has increased
significantly to more than 1/2 the resident population.

2. The majorfty of women coming to Crossroads are native wosen, while the
majority of men are non-native.

3. More people are completing the program than were completing the program
one year ago.

Actual evaluative data will be available in late 1977.
Detoxication Centre

February 25 76 to February 31, 1977
The Detdx Centre has completed 115 Tirst year of operation as of February 24, 1976.

Individual Admissinns = 1,347

Average nuzber of new admisions per day - 4,
Tota) bed nights used @ 10 beds - 2,100
Total bed nights used @ 12 beds - _ BS8

Total bed nights used 2,959
Average occupancy - B (707 capacity).

Non-Residential Treatment:

Daily average of sober ex-residents’ visits - 10,
Research Statistics: .

A Ul Evaluative-Program Development Research project is in its inftial stages
some preliminary data is included below:

a) In the first 6 months of operation, 218 individuals were admitted to the
Detox Centre.

b) Although only an insignificant number of users of the service were from
outside Yukon, the largest propertion appears to have no fixed address.

¢} The largest proportion aof users was male, with a median age of 38.79 years.

d) The average age is probably higher than stated above since ages were coded
at 60 and over. 9,2% stated they were over B0 years of age, in fact, in their
70s and 80s.

e) The data on employment at the time of admission indicates that the majority
are reported to be labourers or to have no occupation.

f) 20% were employed at the time of the first admission.

g) The number reporting major chronic illnesses was low, 14,7, as was the
number using medication. However, it was noted from the resident's case files
that an extremely high number require medical referrals. Therefore, it seems
that the users describe themselves as a healthier yroup than is actually the
case.

h) Referral source: 45% - self-referrals
241 - RCWP
101 - Social and Health Agencies
9% - friends
4% - relatives
31 - medical
1% - taxi drivers and bartenders
4% - unrecorded

i) The ‘averaqo length of stay is from 25 to 48 hours, medim is s1ightly more
than 24 hours.
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The research to date, has only studied the user characteristics, further study
will be completed on the program. Attached please find a copy of a pamphlet which
discusses A,0.5. Services for treatment.

Summary:

Trfe_ﬁ%un Centre accepted its first resident on February 25, 1976. Before the
centre opened it was considered that a 70U occupancy rate would meet the
denand for services. The forecast occupancy rate, i.e. 70% of 10 beds, for the
period February 25, 1976 to October 31, 1976 would have been 1,498, The actual
occupancy rate was 2,100 or 98.203. Because the demand for beds ranged as high
as 16 {beds) per day, it was necessary to allocate additional bed space.

A demand for non-residential services also became apparént. These services includad
supervision and follow-up programs for sober ex-clients, counselling services as
requested by the court, and specialized non-residential treatment services e.g.
antabuse programs. The centre also now provides a social setting free of alcohol
where sober ex-clients can come to spend time, receive encouragement and associate
with other sober persons.

In surmary, the demand for services and the variety of services used has surpassed
our expectations. The first year of operation was very successful.

\\‘-\«-.L i 19 3!
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ALCOHOL AND DRUG SERVICES

MONTHLY REPORT

FEBRUARY, 1977
Quring the month of February, 1977, Alcohol and Drug Services started
gearing up to expand its programs into all Yukon commnities. During
the month, Alcohol and Orug Services' Community Consultants and/or
the Chief of Alcohol and Drug Services visited at least once, and fn
some cases as wuch as three times, the following communities: Watson
Lake, Upper Liard, Teslin, Carcross, Whitehorse, Haines Junction,
Destruction Bay, Burwash Landing, Dawson City, Pelly Crossing, Carmacks,
Drury Creek, Faro, and Ross River. While visiting these communities,
a wide variety of services were offered; individual counselling,
consultations with other social and health workers, training sessions,
public information sessions, commwnity development meetings, training
seminars, etc.

Workshops:

Employee Alcoholism Programs:
Employee Alcoholism Seminar, for the federal Department of Public Worls
Attendance: 25 supervisors

Employee Alcoholism - D.P.W. Supervisors Training Evaluation Sessipn
Employee Alcoholism - Indian Affairs, Preliminary meeting for training session

Employee Alcoholism - Meeting with YTPSA Special Committee on Employee
Alcohol Problems.

Public Information Programs:

Upper Liard - Blade Group. Public Information Series - 15 in attendance
Watson Laké - Blade Group - 11 in attendance

Upper Liard - Community Meeting on Alcohol Information - 31 in attendance
Carcross - Blade Group. Public Information Meeting - 20 in attendance
Carcross - Information Meeting for General Public - 50 in attendance

Justice of the Peace Conference - Public informatian, - 40 in sttendance

Iraining Programs:
Whitehorse Elementary School - Aspects of Solvent Use - 75 in altesgance
Selkirk Elementary School - Aspects of Solvent Use - 10 in attendance

staff of the Detoxication Centre - Training Program on Mental Disorders,
= 10 in attendance (2 meetings).

Comaunity Developrent Meetings:
These meetings were held with various people from laca! cormunities ta

discuss the development of programs in their communities.

thile at Crossroads the resident will be favolved in aroup discussions,

croup therapy. individual counseliing and o variaty o other freaiment
pethads.  Weon referring a persan to Crossroads. coatict 1ho ramsunity
consultanl who serves your region.  The conmunity condu’taet well beip
you develop @ T other mothod of refrrein Lo
Crasan wis Hreesly.
ALCOL ARG SOMICES ALGLONAL FRUGRAMS:

- [euwg Stephenson - This reglen includes the
cemmunfties nf Watson Lake, Teclin, Haines
Junction, Destruction Bay, Burwash and Bedyer
Croek.

Alasiy High,

Contral Yuksn Fegion = Mike Rawlisas - This renlon fnclod
Soca t f Ross Raver. Fa
Peily Crov Stewart Jvofsin

Flsa, and scno 1T

Sacthorn Yuxon Regien - 1 Cline « This arer includes the cocunitive
Apern Pltyg, Flintey Grpedk aid 014 Crow
inrgtee Reghon 7wt be i) led
S ¥ T the
wwal ard Prun Services’ affice will be opened in Fara, (0 April,

Mike Paudings will ee Tocated n that cormunity.

1. Comwnity consultants will prowide consullations an the request of the
cuurts ar alljed social zeencies. Copsultation includes gn gsiossment
of the cases and suggested treatwent plans,




2. Counselifng services for people with alcohol and drug problems,
3. Referral to central services.

4. Treatment fallew-up plans and services for clients who are referred
to central services for treacrent.

Horkinu with lacal corvunity penple to develop programs in their
oyt tign which seel: to @il with aleshol and drug cancerns.

I

In fprit, 1977, toenunity cuwisu't aill begin to travel to vost
corrinities on 3 monthly bLasis. intoemation on when the comunity
consultants will be availahle 1% wur cumwunity please contact either the
Public Hoalth Hurse or the Area Secizl Worker.

COMMUNITY-PASFD PROGRANS :
In 1977, Mcohol and Drug Servires will begin to experiment with the
develnpment of four programs bLased in local communities. This Is a new
experimental program,

Alcohal and Druq Services will not be able to provide this program in all
conmunities until 1t has been tested and evaluated,

The four comunities where tnese sevyices will be provided are Toslin,
Carcross. Ross River, and Dawson City. Those services will seek to provide
counselling, referral and follow-up afier treatment services.

Further informatfon will be made available to all interested parties in the
four selected cormunities ia April, 1977.

TJRAIRING AMD ECUCATIONAL SERVICES:

Training and educational services are available to all community groups,
organizations, and Informal groups of infercsted citizens.

These programs are pravided thraunh the division's training services unit
which s simgrvised by Training Offizer, Doug Stuphenson.

Mr. Stephenson can be contactad in Waitehorse by phoning 667-5627,
Exomolus of the division's training and educational services are:

1. Trainien of social and health workers (counsclling persons with
alcohal prohlems);

Cormmity educational sassions on al:chol and drug concerns;

Training of volunteers and lay workers;

B ow

Information services on the division's services to local community people

FIL!

Through the Madia Services Division of the YTG's Library Services dranch,

a wide variety of educational films on alcohol and other drugs are available

;gr‘tggr{'mnuy use. The division's alcohol and drug film cataleque includas
es,

A fiIm which should be of particular interest to Yukoners is "Nice And Easy".
This picture was filsed on lecation in Yukon for the Alcohal and Drug Services
division, Tha film focuses on alcoboi problems in Yukun,

The ~entral theme i35 of a man charged with manslasudhter. The film provides
insight into & 1ife of self-vestruction, The accused 15 a composite figure
taken from actual case files.

The film i1lustrates that Yuloners are often of wvery different opinions
as to both the cause of and cure o 2iconal problems,

Inquiries concerning the Alcohol and Drun Film catalogue or scheduling of
films should be directed to: Modia Services, Library Services Branch,
Yukon Territorial Government, 2070 - 2nd Avenue, Whitchorse, Yukon Y1A 2C6.
(667-5240).

‘ﬂrl 1s focused on treatment programs cffered hy Alcohol ard
wrdens,

16 you vy grodp s i meed o alcake’ or dis ralated servicas not
4uscric od in this pamphlet, contact 3§11 S1ine, <hicf of Alcohal and
Drug Services in Whitehorse by phoning €07-5627.

Cceasionally, people in Yukon experience alcohol and drug related problems
which reagl=e specialized services not available in the territory. Alcohol
ang frup Sarvices will help arrange a referral to those services through

s with programs in tre srovinces.

SERVICES:

A1l services provided directly by the Yukon Government are offered without
cost to residents of Yukon. Crossroads, which {s operated by & private
saciety, offers a J0-day fogran a cost uf arnexirately S50, 1T

the client 1s unanle to pay this t or the total amount, a variety of
Freangerantt can be made to cover w2 mit of troabrent,

AND_DRUG SERVIC

Aicaho? and Truq Services servcs Yukon by providing centralized resioventis)
treatrant scevices in Mhitehorse. four rogiohal orograms and lecal comounity-
based programs,

Detoxfcation Centre,
502 Hoge Street,
Vhitehrrse, ¥.7.

667-1375

%
The detoxfcation centre serves two primary functions, They are:

1) To detosify the person (help the intoxicated person regain sobriety);

2) To fintreduce the persen to the *irst stage of treatment.

aatition, the detos centre serves os 3o aut-patient clinic for local

e 2 S L
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Tha getexicauion centre f§ 3 1 3-ted fucility wn'ch provides Zs-hour service
to clients, [ts sarvices are avaflavle to all residents of Yukon.

Potential ¢lierzs of the astox cantre ave those wno are intoxicated or those
who are being introduced to treatment,

The program 3t the detax centre lasts a mawimum of seven days. After a client
regains sobriety, he or she is encouraged to seek further treatment for his
alcchol problems. This could include a referral to Crossroads or a referral

*o ene of the workers who provides services in the local communities.

Referrals cante made to the detox centre by contacting the cormunity consultant
who serves your local region, For example, if a referral is to be made from %
the Central Yukon Region in a cormunity such as Faro, you contact Mike Rawlings

at 667-5627 in Whitehorse. He will arrangs 3 referral to the detox centre,

Crossroads Treatment Centre
6118 - £th Avenue
Whiteharse, Y.T.

667-2261

Crossreads 15 a 30-day residential treatment centre for people suffering
fror alcohol problems. The client 4tust be sober before he is acdmitted to
Crossroads. Detoxication can be arranged through tue detox centre, The
Crossroads program is 3 residential tres At pregram with the client living
in the facility. The client {5 involwed a treatment program five days a
week and 15 required to attend at least two ALA. reetings a week, ALA,
meetings are held nightly in Whitchore.

Community Development Meetings: (cont'd)

Teslin- Meeting with the Teslin Band Staff

Burwash - Meeting with the Kluane Band Council Members and Staff

Dawson City - Meeting with 25 individuals to discuss an alcoholism program

in that community

Faro - Meeting with the Iner Agency Council to discuss Alcohol and Drug
Services' work in comnunity.

Pelly Crossing - Meeting with Band Chief and Public Health Nurse
Carcross - Meeting with Band Chief and local community volunteers

While visiting a variety of communities in the Yukon, staff members

were involved in meeting with individuals and informal groups to
discuss concerns about alcohal problems and informal sessions to discuss
plans for developing alcohal programs in those communities.

Client Statistics:

New Referrals: 9

Number of individual therapy sessions: 2§

Consultations with allied social workers and with their clients: 10
Consultation with allied social workers where clients were not seen: 30

Alcohol and Drug Services has now completed a pamphlet which explains
its services, how to make referrals to these services, and appropriate
information for making referrals te or contacting its workers. For
copies of this pamphlet please contact Nadine Brown, 667-5627, Alcohol
and Drug Services.
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